" ORIGINAL ﬂ

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT oo ECEIVED

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

JAN 1
This Section must be completed for all projects. 9 2012
. HEALYH FACILITIES &
Facility/Project Identification SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
Facility Name: Elmhurst Memorial Hospital
Street Address: 200 Berteau Avenue
City and Zip Code:  Eimhurst, IL 60126
County: DuPage Health Service Area V| Health Planning Area: A-Q5
Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].
Exact Legal Name: Elmhurst Memorial Hospital
Address: 155 E. Brush Hill Road —and- 200 Berteau Avenue Elmhurst, {L
60126
Name of Registered Agent: Mary Barz Dano
Name of Chief Executive Officer:  W. Peter Daniels
CEQ Address: 155 East Brush Hill Road Elmhurst, IL 80126
Telephone Number; 331/221-1000
Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant
X Non-profit Corporation M Partnership
M For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company 1 Sole Proprietorship ] Other
o Corporations afid-imitedTiability Gompanias must Provide an lilinols cerificate of good ~ |
standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each pariner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

JAPPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST,PAGE OF,THE
¥ APPLICATION FORM] g _ ‘ - :

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review pericd]
Name:; Ms. Gail Warner

Title: Vice President, Strategic Planning

Company Name: Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare

Address: 165 East Brush Hill Road Elmhurst, IL 60126
Telephone Number:  331/221-1000

E-mait Address: gwarner@emhc.org

Fax Number: 331/221-3790

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit)

Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 60067
Telephone Number:  847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number: B47/776-7004
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Elmhurst Memorial Hospital

Street Address: 200 Berteau Avenue

City and Zip Code;  Elmhurst, IL 60126

County: DuPage Health Service Area VI Health Planning Area: A-05

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name:

Elmhurst Memcrial Healthcare

Address:

155 E. Brush Hill Road Elmhurst, IL 60126

Name of Registered Agent:

Mary Barz Dano

Name of Chief Executive Officer:

W. Peter Daniels

CEQO Address:

155 East Brush Hill Road Elmhurst, iL 80128

Telephone Number:

331/221-1000

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership

] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental

O Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other
o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Ms. Gail Warner

Title: Vice President, Strategic Planning

Company Name: Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare

Address: 1565 East Brush Hill Road Elmhurst, IL 60126
Telephone Number.  331/221-1000

E-mail Address: gwarner@emhec.org

Fax Number; 331/221-3780

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, . 60067

Telephong Number:  847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number: 847/776-7004




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION{. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Elmhurst Memorial Hospital

Street Address: 200 Berteau Avenue

City and Zip Code:  Elmhurst, IL 60126

County: DuPage Health Service Area VI Health Planning Area: A-05

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Cyberknife Center of Chicago, LLC

Address: 100 Bayview Circle Suite 400 Newport Beach, CA 92660
Name of Registered Agent;

Name of Chief Executive Officer:  Cynthia Winkler, Executive Vice President

CEQ Address: 40 Burton Hills Bivd. Suite 220 Nashville, TN 37215
Telephone Number: 615/665-8220

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
(] For-profit Corporation ] Govemnmental
] Limited Liability Company [l Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact

{Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name: Ms. Gail Warner

Title: Vice President, Strategic Planning

Company Name: E!mhurst Memorial Healthcare

Address: 155 East Brush Hill Read Elmhurst, IL 60126
Telephone Number:  331/221-1000

E-mail Address: _ gwarner@emhc.org

Fax Number: 331/221-3790

Additional Contact

Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 60067
Telephone Number:  B47/776-7101

E-mail Address: Jacobmaxe!@msn.com

Fax Number, 847/776-7004




Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE

Name: Ms. Gail Warner

Title: Vice President, Strategic Planning

Company Name: Elmhurst Memoriai Healthcare

Address: 155 East Brush Hill Road Elmhurst, IL 60126
Telephone Number:  331/221-1000

E-mail Address: gwarner@emhc.org

Fax Number: 331/221-3790

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare

Address of Site Qwner: 155 East Brush Hill Road Elmhurst, IL 60126

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: 200 Berteau Avenue Elmhurst, IL 60126
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attestmg to ownershlp, an optlon to Iease a Ietter of mtent to Iease ora Iease

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATI'ACHMENT-Z IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

" APPLICATION FORM. -

Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: Eimhurst Memorial Hospital

Address: 155 E. Brush Hill Road —and- 200 Berteau Avenue Eimhurst, IL 60126

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership

] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental

0J Limited Liability Company [l Sole Proprietorship [] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownershlp

= - =T o T T T

';’-'APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-3 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER. THE LAST PAGE OF THE.
. APPLICATION FORM, i : - ‘

Organizational Relationships

financial contribution

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related {as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any

. APPLICATION FORM.

“

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACI'!MENT-4 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE




Flood Plain Requirements NOT APPLICABLE

[Refer {0 application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Qrder #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
piease provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodptain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of ||||n0|s Executlve Order #2005 5 h ﬂwww hisrb.illinois. qov)

APPEND DOCUMENTATION. AS ATTACHMENT -5. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements NOT APPLICABLE

[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservatlon Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION. AS ATTACHMENT-G IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b}]

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:

Part 1110 Ciassification: [Check one only.}

O Substantive [ Part 1120 Not Applicable
Category A Project

X Non-substantive X Category B Project

1 DHS or DVA Project




2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY itis being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal
description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

The applicants propose to discontinue all of the inpatient and outpatient services operated
by Elmhurst Memorial Hospital on its Berteau Campus in Elmhurst. The inpatient services to be
discontinued are a 38-bed long-term care unit and an 18-bed acute mental illness (AMI) unit.
The outpatient services to be discontinued include a “stand-by” emergency department,
oncology, behavioral health, physical and occupational therapy, imaging, an immediate care
center and occupational health.

During the planning for Elmhurst Memorial Hospital’s replacement facility, which
opened during the past summer, it was intended that the AMI unit and the long-term care umit
would relocate to renovated space in the newest part of the original hospital. That plan was
reasonable during the planning process, 6-7 years ago. However, economic conditions and
limited capital resources now make the required renovation and the operating of the unit remote
from the main hospital no longer economically feasible. In addition, and following recent
evaluations, the relocating of the inpatient program to the hospital’s new campus, at a cost of
approximately $45M, was also deemed to be not financially feasible at this time.

The long-term care unit operates as an intermediate care physical rehabilitation unit,
operated in conjunction with Marianjoy Rehabilitation Hospital, with all admissions coming
from the hospital’s acute care units. EMH is working with Marianjoy to ensure the seamless
placement of EMH patients in other Marianjoy-affiliated sub-acute care programs, to ensure that
accessibility will not be compromised. While the IDPH Inventory identifies a “need” for
additional long-term care beds in the area, a significant number of letters have been received
from area providers, indicating capacity and a willingness to accept patients.

The AMI unit operates as a short-term stabilization program, with an average length of
stay 6-7 days and an average daily census of approximately 12 patients. All of the hospitals
outpatient behavioral health programs, including both a broad spectrum of individual and group
programs, with an emphasis on diminishing the need for inpatient hospitalization, as well as a
crisis intervention program located in the hospital’s Emergency Department, will be retained. In
addition, EMH will continue to employ two psychiatrists, whose focus will be on providing
consultations on the inpatient units and supporting the crisis intervention program, including the
transfer of patients to nearby providers, as necessary. Furthermore, EMH is working on transfer
agreements with two other area hospitals that have AMI capacity and a willingness to admit its
psychiatric inpatients. Those hospitals are Westlake Hospital and MacNeal Hospital, which are
located 12 and 21 minutes from EMH’s Berteau Campus, respectively. Those agreements are
referenced in the letters supplied by Westlake and MacNeal, and included in ATTACHMENT
10C. The discussions underway also focus on returning those patients to EMH’s outpatient
behavioral health program, following discharge. The IDPH Inventory identifies an excess of 32
AMI beds in the hospital’s planning area, and an excess of 85 AMI beds in the adjacent planning
area.

Upon discontinuation, the hospital’s parent, Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare will continue
to operate the outpatient services on the Berteau Campus, including its oncology program,

¢




outpatient behavioral health programs, the immediate care center, physical and occupational
therapy, imaging and occupational health. The fair market value associated with the outpatient
services to remain in operation is under the IHFSRB’s capital expenditure threshold, and
therefore a CON Permit will not be required to keep these services in operation. It is intended
that within the next two years, the oncology program, which consists primarily of radiation
therapy and infusion therapy, will be relocated to the hospital’s York Street campus. Should the
relocation and associated costs exceed the capital expenditure threshold, a Permit will be secured
from the THFSRB prior to moving the program.

The long-term use of the Berteau Avenue campus has not been finalized.

This is a non-substantive project because it is limited to the discontinuation of services.




Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds
USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation
Off Site Work
New Construction Contracts

Modemization Contracts

Contingencies
Architectural/Engineering Fees

Consulting and Other Fees

Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts)

Bend Issuance Expense {project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction (project
related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment
Other Costs To Be Capitalized

Acquisition of Bundmg or Other Property (excluding
land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $0*
SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities

Pledges
Gifts and Bequests
Bond Issues (project related)

Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)

Govermnmental Appropriations

Grants
Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $0*

*all project costs to be expensed, rather than capitalized

o




Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project []Yes X No
Purchase Price; §
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
L] Yes X No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utilization specified in Part 1100,

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ none

Project Status and Completion Schedules

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
X None or not applicable [ ] Preliminary
[ 1 Schematics [} Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): July 31, 2012

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[J Project abligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

X Project obligation will occur after permit issuance.

State Agency Submittals

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
X Cancer Registry
X APORS
X All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted
X All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for pemmit being
deemed incomplete.




Cost Space Requirements

NOT APPLICABLE

Provide in the following format, the depariment/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the depariment costs

MUST equal the totai estimated project costs.

purpose.

circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
Include outside wall measurements plus the department's or area’s portion of the surrounding

Gross Square Feet

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet
That |s:

Dept. / Area

Cost

Existing | Proposed

New

Const.

Modemnized

Vacated

Asls Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL

;'APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -9, IN NUMERIC SEQU

AFFLICATION FORM

S

ST PAGE OF THE" . ..,




Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Include observation days in the patient day
totals for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the
application being deemed incompiete.

FACILITY NAME: Elmhurst Memorial Hospital CITY: Eimhurst

REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: January1, 2010 to: December 31, 2010

Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical 198 9,894 48,222 198

Obstetrics 20 1,340 3,649 20

Pediatrics 6 125 264 6

Intensive Care 35 1,544 5479 35

Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation

Acute/Chrenic Mental lliness 18 740 4404 {18) 0

Neonatal Intensive Care

General Long Term Care 38 865 12,980 (38) 0

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other {(identify)

TOTALS: 315 14,508 75,003 (56) 259




CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s} are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger of member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietar, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of __Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare .
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned aliso certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

L2 ¢ :
SIGNATURE U SIGNATUR
ol Peker Daniels , FACHE St Dede

p‘&INTED NAME PRINTED NAME!
- —
recident [CE 4P+ £fo
PRINTED TITLE T PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: *  Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me : Subscribed and sworn to before me

this \Q Q¢ day ofM this \ OXkday ofmm%ﬁ
Mlan S0 Dot o it Aol
Signatdre of Not “~  Signature of Notary

Official Seal

Seat Nicole M Vassolo Seal Nicgy Jea
Notary Public State of ilinais No o
My Commission Expires 04/04/2012 @yf'ggg%_S,ggﬁcéﬁzsoggyg:go >
*Insert EXA . ,




CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partrership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

L ]

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of __Elmhurst Memorial Hospital
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

L1G2SDs ~'

SIGNATURE U/ SIGNATURE
W. feter Paels, FACHE Sama ¥ Doyl
RINTED NAME PRINTED NAME '
residwet [(E0 AP+ CFO
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: ’ Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me

this lgy  day of _Savwaea . this _\b-wday of

WQMEQ
Signa of Notary

Seal Official Seal
Nicole M Vassolo
Notary Public State of llinors
My Commission Expires 04/04/2012
s

A oM Noudg

Signature of Notary

Official Seal
Nicole M Vassolo
Nota y Public State of lllingis
My Commission Expires D4/04/2012

VW U




CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited fiability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of _ Cyberknife Center of Chicago, LLC_
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

MM WWC?JZ,&;(}

SIGNATNURE v U SIGNATURE ]

Aong, T D e Cowvmpg £ Wiweet
PRINTED NAME 1 PRINTED NAME

1 .

%WM Wb Al anagrg ENBELS
PRINTED TITLE RRINTED TITLE
Notarization; Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me
this Yox\a day of P this __é&?:‘day of \Jjaust /2
Signgt\ubre of Notary V <Bignature of Notary

Official Seal

Seal Nicole M Vassolo Seal
Notary Public State of lllinois
My Commission Expires 04/04/2012
*Insert EXAETNEgEME “Reimlati| o] )i




SECTION Il. DISCONTINUATION

This Section is applicable to any project that involves discontinuation of a health care facility or a category
of service. NOTE: If the project is solely for discontinuation and if there is no project cost, the remaining
Sections of the application are not applicable.

Criterion 1110.130 - Discontinuation

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

GENERAL INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

1.

2.

Identify the categories of service and the number of beds, if any that is to be discontinued.
Identify all of the other clinical services that are to be discontinued.

Provide the anticipated date of discontinuation for each identified service or for the entire facility.
Provide the anticipated use of the physical plant and equipment after the discontinuation occurs.

Provide the anticipated disposition and location of all medical records pertaining to the services
being discontinued, and the length of time the records will be maintained.

For applications involving the discontinuation of an entire facility, certification by an authorized
representative that all questionnaires and data required by HFSRB or DPH (e.g., annual
questionnaires, capital expenditures surveys, etc.) will be provided through the date of
discontinuation, and that the required information will be submitted no later than 60 days following
the date of discontinuation.

REASONS FOR DISCONTINUATION

The applicant shall state the reasons for discontinuation and provide data that verifies the need for the
proposed action. See criterion 1110.130(b) for examples.

IMPACT ON ACCESS

1.

Document that the discontinuation of each service or of the entire facility will not have an adverse
effect upon access to care for residents of the facility's market area.

Docurnent that a written request for an impact statement was received by all existing or approved
health care facilities (that provide the same services as those being discontinued) located within
45 minutes travel time of the applicant facility.

Provide copies of impact statements received from other resources or health care facilities
located within 45 minutes travel time, that indicate the extent to which the applicant's workload
will be absorbed without conditions, limitations or discrimination.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-10, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

/S




SECTION Hi. DISCONTINUATION

This Section is applicable to any project that involves discontinuation of a health care facility or a category
of service. NOTE: If the project is solely for discontinuation and if there is no project cost, the remaining
Sections of the appiication are not applicable,

Criterion 1110.130 - Discontinuation

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

GENERAL INFOCRMATION REQUIREMENTS

L

2.

ldentify the categories of service and the number of beds, if any that is to be discontinued.
Identify all of the other clinical services that are to be discontinued.

Provide the anticipated date of discontinuation for each identified service or for the entire facility.
Provide the anticipated use of the physical plant and egquipment after the discontinuation occurs.

Provide the anticipated dispesition and lecation of all medical records pertaining to the services
being discontinued, and the length of time the records will be maintained.

For applications involving the discontinuation of an entire facility, certification by an authorized
representative that all questionnaires and data required by HFSRB or DPH (e.g., annual
guestionnaires, capital expenditures surveys, efc.) will be provided through the date of
discontinuation, and that the required information will be submitted no fater than 60 days following
the date of discontinuation.

REASONS FOR DISCONTINUATION

The applicant shall state the reasons for discontinuation and provide data that verifies the need for the
proposed action. See criterion 1110.130(b) for examples.

IMPACT ON ACCESS

1.

Document that the discontinuation of each service or of the entire facility will not have an adverse
effect upon access to care for residents of the facility's market area.

Document that a written request for an impact statement was received by all existing or approved
health care facilities (that provide the same services as those being discontinued) located within
45 minutes {ravel time of the applicant facility.

Provide copies of impact statements received from other resources or health care facilities
located within 45 minutes travel time, that indicate the extent to which the applicant’s workload
will be absorbed without conditions, limitations or discrimination.




SECTION lil - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES
- INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no

project costs. NOT APPLICABLE
Criterion 1110.230 - Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGRQUND OF APPLICANT

1. A listing of alf health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and
certification if applicable.

2. A cerlified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary o verify the
information submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies;
the licensing or certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally
recognized accreditation organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute
an abandonment or withdrawal of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. |f, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information
requirements of this criterion, In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been
previously provided, cite the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes
have occumred regarding the information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able
to submit amendments to previously submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clanfy
data.

“fi@%@ﬁi

PURPOSE OF PROJECT NOT APPLICABLE

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or weli-being of
the market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or cther, per the applicant's definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate
for the project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.}

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the
population’s health status and weli-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to
achieving the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modemization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects,
include statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced,
include repair and maintenance records.

e

i




.NOTE: Informat:on regarding the “Purposa of the Project”. will be included in

ALTERNATIVES NOT APPLICABLE
1) identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint veniure or similar arrangement with one or more
providers or entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended
purposes; developing alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the
project’s intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve ail or a
portion of the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options.
The comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and
financial benefifs in both the shorl temm (within one to three years after project
completion) and long term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY
ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE
REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3) The appticant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantiffed outcome data
that verifies improved quality of care, as available.

LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM




SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information; NOT APPLICABLE

SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and
not excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the
discrepancy by documenting one of the following:: .

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or
operational needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facility's physicat configuration has constraints or impediments and requires
an architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B,

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that resulis in excess square
footage.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided
in the following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE | PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

. APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE
| OF THE APPLICATION FORM : :

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION: NOT APPLICABLE

This criterion is applicabie only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100,

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPTJ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS}
ETC.
YEAR 1
YEAR 2

' APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 15 IN NUMEREC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE.
' APPLICATION FORM ‘

. o i 4"_'»"I| ‘-‘l__“‘- B . . ,-:“4.|<; AU X .
C o N AN R LR T L P

/F




UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: NOT APPLICABLE
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage of the proposed sheli space;

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF tot be allocated to
each department, area or function;

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas
proposed to cccupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data are
available; and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections
of future utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space
will be placed into operation.

-APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS A'ITACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE
_OF THE APPLICATION FORM : .

ASSURANCES: NOT APPLICABLE
Submit the foliowing:
1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and
utilize the shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the

categories of service involved.

2, The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utifize the
subject shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

_ ‘APPEND DOCUMENTATlON As ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL RDE FTER T_i-iE LAST PAGE -
A DF THE APPLICATION FORM S IS L e




The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fiteh's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody’s {the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

¢ Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
¢« Section 1120.130 Financial Viability = Review Criteria
*  Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VIII. - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

NOT APPLICABLE, NO PROJECT COST
The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a) Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
institutions, board resclutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on any
asset from the date of applicant’s submission through project completion;

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, @ summary of the anficipated pledges showing anticipated receipts
and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a
discussion of past fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and the
estimated time table of receipts;

d) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period, variable or
permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for any
interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting anticipated;

2} For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3 For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expectation
of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, efc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property and
provision of capital equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and conditions.

) Gevernmental Appropriations - a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding avaitability from an official of the governmental unit. if funds are to be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit
altesting te this intent;

f Granis - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

g) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project.

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE




IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viability

NOT APPLICABLE, NO PROJECT COST

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding {scle responsibility or shared} and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA {Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

‘APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-40, iN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. : .

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

Provide Data for Projects Classiﬁed Category A or Category B {last three years) Category B
‘35:. . T o 7 _ _ {Projected)

 Enter Historical and/or Projected” .
Years: Ce e R

4

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations shouid the
applicant default.

. APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 41, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
. APPLICATION FORM, * *~ ~ ~ = =~ ' ’ o o T
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X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

NOT APPLICABLE, NO PROJECT COST

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitling a
nofarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

D)

2)

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because;

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B} Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing invesiments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This critenion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reascnable by submiiting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1)

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;

That the setected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is
more advantageous due fo such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new egquipment,

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Fit. Const. $ Mod. Cost
New Mod. New Circ* | Mod. Circ.* {AxC) (BxE) (G +H)
Contingency
TOTALS

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

)2




NOT APPLICABLE, NO PROJECT COST

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following pro;ect completion, Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following project
comgpletion.
~APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -42, iN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF. THE
APPLICATION FORM i S T L RN




Xl Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant te have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of ancther provider or health care system fo cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reperting requirements for charity care reporting in the
lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methodology specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaidpatients. Hospital and non-
hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in & manner consistent with the information reported each year to the lllinois
Department of Public Health regarding “Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and "Inpatient and Qutpatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile,

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43,

Safety Net Information per PA 956-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) 2008 2009 2010
Inpatient 943 748 1,116
Qutpatient 1,542 3,328 4,006
Total 2,485 4.077 5,122
Charity (cost In dollars)
Inpatient $2,841,008 $3,454,758 $3,931,342
Qutpatient $1,955,083 $2.615,326 $3,159,949
Total $4,796,091 $6,070,084 $7,091,291
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) 2008 2009 2010
Inpatient 999 1,183 1,217
Outpatient 26,573 36,714 38,640
Total 27,572 37,897 39,857
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient $6,970,493 $7.579,913 $8,857,501
Outpatient $1,957,034 $1,871,109 $3,245,659
Total $8,927 527 $9.451,022 $12,103,160

TAPPEND DOCUMENTATION AS’ATTACHMENT-43)
APPLICATION FOR -




XIt. harity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and eo-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the |atest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the rafio of that ¢harity care cost to net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilties, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in Illinois. If
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financtal statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3 If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projecied ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care™ means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44,

CHARITY CARE
2008 2009 2010
Net Patient Revenue $285,080,892 $306,696,734 $206,664,159
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $18,681,666 $24,238,835 $29 588,271
Cost of Charity Care $4,796,091 $6,070,084 $7,091,291

20




File Number 2346-969-3

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Ureeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

ELMHURST MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON MARCH 28, 1934, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 18TH

day of FEBRUARY A.D. 2011

R, p Y ! 1 ’
Authenlicalion #; 1104902068 M W@

Autherticate at: hitp:/fwww.cyberdrivellinols.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
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File Number 5836-907-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeling:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

ELMHURST MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JUNE 06, 1995, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 18TH
dayof ~ FEBRUARY  AD. 2011

\\‘\ & | 4 _\. r r .
Authentication #: 1104802018 M

Authenticate at: hitp/www.cyberdriveilinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
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File Number = 0286229-8

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeling:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

CYBERKNIFE CENTER OF CHICAGO, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY HAVING OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON
SEPTEMBER 02, 2009, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN
GOOD STANDING AS A FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of IMinois, this 19TH
day of DECEMBER AD. 2011

V“‘z‘ ","I. (L5 52 ovte
u T gy &
Authentication #. 1135302324 M

Authenticate at http:/Awww.cyberdriveiliinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

7. / ATTACHMENT 1




UNOFFICIAL COPY

Gt o
CRA R96-002150 86 JAH -4 P 2:45
TEE' REGORDER )
bt EE'S DU PAGE COUNTY %mf

This indenture made this 29thday
of December , 1995, between
THE CHICAGO TRUST COMPANY, a
corporation of Hlinois, as Trustee
under the provisions of a deed or
deeds in trust, duly recorded and
delivered to said company in
pursuance of a trust agreement
dated the 1St day of
Bugust 19 52«
and known as Trust Number

]g 35936 . party of the
4 first part, and

Reserved for Recorder's Office

W‘/EIMHURST MEMORTAL HEALTH SYSTEM, an Illinois not—-for-profit corporation,

whose address is: 200 Berteau Avenue, Elmhurst, Illinois 60126

party of the second part.
, in consideration of the sum of TEN and no/100 DOLLARS {$10.00)

g WITNESSETH, That said party of the first part
~ AND OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE considerations in hand paid, does hereby CONVEY ANDQUITCLAIM unto said party
= of the second part, the following described real estate, situated in DuPage %1 «.County, llinois, to wit:
7 s
o= See Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.
Subject to: See Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof.
g City of Elmhurst
Fa) R state Transfer Ta
0 i Dat s N
Y o }C;C:K?@ 5662
& .
= Parmanent Tax Number: See Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.
=
a
: together with the tenements and appurtenances theraunto belonging.
L
=~ TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same unto said party of the second part, and to the proper use, benefit and behoof forever
:S- of said party of the second part.
é This deed is executed pursuant to snd in the exercise of the power and authority granted to and vested in sald trustee
= by the terms of said deed or deads in trust dalivered to said trustea in pursuance of tha trust agresment above
o mentionad. This deod Is made subject to the lien of every trust dead or mortgage (if any thare be) of racord in sald county

givan to secure the payment of money, and remaining unreloased at the date of the delivery hereof.
ATTACHMENT 2
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The Zurich Edge - Healthcare @
ZURICH

Policy Number
ZMD 9336810-00
Named Insured and Mailing Address
ELMHURST MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE
200 NORTH BERTEAU AVENUE
ELMHURST
IL 60126-2966

BLMHURST MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE and any subsidiary, and ELMHURST MEMORIAL
HEALTHCARE interest in any partnership or joint venture in which ELMHURST MEMORIAL
HEALTHCARE has management control or ownership as now constituted or hereafter is acquired, as the
respective interest of each may appear. All hereafter referred to as the "Insured", including legal

representatives.

Insurance is provided by the following Stock Company
AMERICAN GUARANTEE AND LIABILITY INSURANCE COMPANY
hereafter referred to as the "Company",

, Producer
JAMES AND GABLE INSURANCE BROKERS
1660 OLYMPIC BLVYD
SUITE 325
WALNUT CREEK, CA 94596-5152

Policy Period _
Coverage begins (5/01/2011 at 12:01 AM; Coverage ends 07/01/2012 at 12:01 AM

Proportionate Share of Company for Loss or Damage
This Policy's proportionate share of foss or damage after the application of any deductible smount is:

100 % Quota Share: Being $750,000,000 part of a $750,000,000 primary loss layer

. Anmnual Policy Premium Surcharges, Taxes & Fees Total Policy Premium
$414,700 0 $414,700

EDGE-D-102-A (06/08)
ID

ATTACHMENT 2




File Number 2346-969-3

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Ureeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

ELMHURST MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON MARCH 28, 1934, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Wher €Of, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 18TH
day of FEBRUARY AD. 2011

Yta ».. L S ’
Authentication #: 1104902068 M W@

Authenticate at: hitp-/fwww.cyberdrivefllinois.com SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 3
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PROJECT COSTS AND SOURCES OF FUNDS

All project costs are being expensed, rather than capitalized; and as a result, and
as confirmed in a technical assistance conference held with IHFSRB staff on December
15, 2011 the identifed “project cost” is $0.

ATTACHMENT 7




DISCONTINUATION
GENERAL INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

The proposed project involves the discontinuation of two categories of service:
acute mental illness, consisting of 18 beds and general long-term care, consisting of 38
beds. In addition, the following outpatient services will be discontinued: oncology, a
“stand-by” emergency department, occupational health, physical and occupational
therapy, imaging, an immediate care center, and outpatient behavioral health. It is
anticipated that each of the above-identified inpatient and outpatient services will be
discontinued no later than May 31, 2012. A number of outpatient services, as identified
in other parts of this application, including the Narrative Description, will continue to be
provided on the Berteau Avenue campus following the “discontinuation” addressed in

this application. Final plans for the campus have yet to be determined.

Elmhurst Memonal Hospital currently operates on two campuses in Elmhurst,
with the proposed project discontinuing one of those campuses. As a result, Elmhurst
Memorial Hospital will remain in operation as a single-campus hospital, with all medical

records being retained by the hospital.

All IDPH and ITHFSRB data requests of EMH are responded to in a consolidated

fashion for the two existing campuses, and that will continue to be the case, as applicable.
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DISCONTINUATION
REASONS FOR DISCONTINUATION

The services to be discontinued, and specifically the inpatient services, are being
discontinued because in the current economic climate it is no longer financially and
economically feasible to operate a 259-bed acute care hospital on one campus and 56
beds on a second campus. When the plans to do so were developed approximately six
years ago, both the economy and financial position of the hospital were significantly

different than is the case today.

The two inpatient programs and the outpatient programs located on the Berteau
Campus occupy approximately 10% of the 550,000 square feet on that campus, with all
of the hospital’s other services having moved to the hospital’s new campus. Estimates
for the renovation of space to continue to house the two inpatient units in a contemporary
setting, which would include infrastructure upgrades, are in the range of $45M, in
addition to the ongoing duplicative costs associated with the continued support (food
service, housekeeping, security, plant operations, utilities, etc.) of the units. These costs
have become, and will continue to be a burden on the hospital as a whole, and one that

limits the allocation of financial resources to other areas.

Elmhurst Memorial Hospital’s service population---those who have looked to

EMH for their health care needs---has remained constant for many years; and the
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applicants have taken great care to ensure that accessibility for that population will not be
compromised as a result of the proposed discontinuation. Specifically, and as discussed
in other attachments to this application: 1) The long term care unit being discontinued is
operated in conjunction with Marianjoy Rehabilitation Hospital as a sub-acute care
rehabilitation unit, and serves patients discharged from an EMH acute care unit
exclusively. EMH is working with area providers, including Marianjoy and the parallel
programs that Marianjoy is affiliated with, in order to provide a smooth transition from
EMH’s acute care setting to sub-acute care rehabilitation programs (see Marianjoy letter
in ATTACHMENT 10C). 2) EMH’s acute mental illness (AMI) unit is limited in scope
to providing short-term stabilization services to adults, and operates with an average daily
census of only 12-13 patients. There are a number of nearby AMI programs that have
excess capacity, and EMH is developing patient transfer agreements with two of those
hospitals (please see letters from Westlake Hospital and MacNeal Hospital provided in
ATTACHMENT 10C). Through the transfer agreements, patients will be accepted for
inpatient care, and then returned to an EMH-operated outpatient program for post-
discharge care. In addition, EMH will maintain its commitment to its Emergency
Department-based crisis intervention program, the employment of two psychiatrists to
provide consults on the inpatient units, and a robust outpatient behavioral health program.
3) Each outpatient program currently located on the Berteau Campus will continue to be
operated by Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare, either on the Berteau Campus, or at 2

different site within the community.
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DISCONTINUATION
IMPACT ON ACCESS

The proposed discontinuation will have no adverse impact on the ability of area
residents to access any of the services currently provided on Elmhburst Memonal
Hospital’s Berteau Campus, which is located 3.14 miles to the north of Elmhurst

Memorial Hospital’s main campus.

Consistent with THFSRB requirements, notification of the impending
discontinuation of the two IDPH-designated categories of service (acute mental illness
and general long-term care) on the Berteau Campus were sent to the 50 acute mental
illness providers and the 338 general long-term care providers located within a 45-minute
drive of the Bertean Avenue site. That notification also identified the outpatient services
currently located on the Berteau Campus site, as well as those services that would
continue to be provided on that site. Also, and consistent with IHFSRB requirements, the
individual facilities were invited to provide an impact statement. Copies of all responses
are attached, as is a template of the letter sent to each provider and lists of the individual
facilities to which letters were sent. Proof of delivery of the letters is provided under

separate cover, due to the large number of requests sent.

The long-term care unit at Elmhurst Memorial Hospital’s Berteau Campus has

operated as an intermediate care physical rehabilitation unit, with all admissions coming
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from the hospital’s acute care units. The unit is managed by Marianjoy Rehabilitation
Hospital, and EMH is working with Marianjoy to ensure that all fiture patients have
access to comparable programs, either at Marianjoy Rehabilitation Hospital (10.5 miles
to the west) or at another sub-acute program managed by Marianjoy. While the IDPH
Inventory identifies a “need” for additional long-term care beds in the area, a significant
number of letters have been received from area providers, indicating capacity and a

willingness to accept patients.

The AMI unit at Elmhurst Memorial Hospital’s Berteau Campus has operated as a
short-term stabilization program, with an average length of stay 6-7 days and an average
daily census of approximately 12 patients. The IDPH /nventory identifies an excess of 32
AMI beds in the hospital’s planning area, and an excess of 85 AMI beds in the adjacent
planning area. There are over 50 AMI providers located within 45 minutes of EMH, and
because of the narrow scope of services provided on EMH’s AMI unit, the hospital has
traditionally transferred patients to more comprehensive programs, particularly programs
offering child/adolescent programs and programs that provide more long-term

placements, rather than short-term stabilization services. Those practices will continue.

In addition, EMH is in discussions with two area hospitals, Westlake Hospital and
MacNeal Hospital, related to the development of formal transfer agreements for AMI
patients presenting themselves in EMH’s Emergency Department, and requiring transfer
to an inpatient unit. Those agreements are referenced in the letters from the two hospitals

located in ATTACHMENT 10C, and the agreements will be provided for review by
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IHFSRB staff upon completion. Westlake is located 14 minutes from the Berteau
Campus and 12 minutes from EMH’s Emergency Department (MapQuest 1/13/12), and
MacNeal is located 20 minutes from the Berteau Campus and 21 minutes from the
Emergency Department. Both Westlake and MacNeal are long-time providers of AMI
services in the western suburbs, indicate that they have the capacity and willingness to
accommodate EMH’s patients, and both will be ex.panding thetr AMI bed capacity prior
to the proposed discontinuation. Included in the transfer agreements will be mechanisms
to smoothly transition patients to and from these programs, including bringing those
patients back to EMH’s outpatient services when inpatient care is no longer required, and

maintaining a strong continuum of care.

Elmhurst Memorial Hospital (EMH) remains committed to behavioral health
services. The hospital has historically offered a broad spectrum of outpatient behavioral
health programs, with an emphasis on avoiding hospitalization, and the applicants intend
to continue and enhance those services. In addition, EMH operates a “comprehensive™
emergency department on its main campus, including a strong behavioral health crisis
intervention program. That program will also remain intact. EMH will continue to
employ two psychiatrists who will provide consults on the hospital’s inpatient units and

assist as needed with the crisis intervention program in the Emergency Departinent.
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Elmhurst Memorial
Healthcare

December 14, 2011

Name
Company
Address
Address

Dear

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare will soon file a Certificate of Need (CON) application with the Itlinois
Health Facilities and Services Review Board (IHFSRB) addressing the discontinuation of the inpatient
acute mental illness and long term care categories of service, currently operated by Elmhurst Memorial
Hospital on its 200 Berteau Avenue campus in Elmhurst. The outpatient services currently provided on
that campus include oncology, outpatient behavioral health, physical and occupational therapy, imaging,
an immediate care center, and occupational health. Those services which, through Elmhurst Memorial
Healthcare, will continue to be provided on that campus are: oncology, physical and occupational therapy,
iminediate care, imaging and occupational health. The “stand-by” emergency room on that camnpus will

also be “discontinued”.

It is anticipated that the inpatient services and “stand-by” emergency room will be permanently
“discontinued” within thirty days of receiving the requested CON Permit. During the 24 month period
ending November 30, 2011, 1,523 patients were adinitted to the inpatient acute mental iliness unit, and
1,728 patients were admitted to the long term care unit.

Consistent with Section 1110.130 of the IHFSRB’s rules, you are hereby provided the opportunity to
provide an impact statement, indicating whether your facility has the willingness and capacity to accept
without conditions, limitations or discrimination patients that have traditionally used the inpatient services
identified above. Impact statements reccived within 15 days of your receipt of this letter will be included
in the CON application.

Thank you for your aftention to this matter.
Sincerely,

(P2 Dt

W. Peter Danjels, FACHE
President/CEQ
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" AVENUE CARE NURSING AND REHABILITATION CENTER

4505 South Drexel « Chicago, llinois 60653
773-285-0550 « Fax 773-285-5618

December 20, 2011

W. Peter Daniels, FACHE
President/CEQ

Elmhurst Memontal Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmburst, Ilinois 60126

Dear Mr. Daniels:

Avenue Care Nursing and Rehabilitation Center offers a cheerful environment where caring and
compassion join together to provide the perfect blend of excellence. We believe that life can be
rewarding and meaningful at every stage. Therefore, our programs offer a wide array of services
specifically developed to assist each resident in reaching their highest Ievel of independence.

Avenue Care Nursing and Rebabilitation Center provides a comprehensive spectrum of nursing
services including skilled, therapy and rehabilitative services, intermediate, hospice and respite care.

The staff at Avenue Care Nursing and Rehabilitation Center is trained to meet the social service needs
of each resident. A Licensed Social Worker, as well as other quelified mental health professionals,
regularly provide specialized services to meet residents’ individualized needs.

Outr staff will discreetly assist each resident/family with the Medicare, Medicaid and Disability
application process. Staff also assists each resident with discharge planning, independent living skills
and community placement.

We are more than willing and have the capacity to accept patients that have traditionally used the
inpatient services: acute mental illness and longterm care categories. Avenue Care Nursing and
Rehabilitation Center conducis an assessment and evaluates each patient prior to admission to make
sure the facility can meet the needs of the patient to ensure quality care.

We look forward to working with you in the near future to provide the best care for the patients that are
in need of inpatient services. If you have any questions and/or concerns please feel fiee to contact me
at (773) — 285 - 0550,

Respe

%

JoeAnn Brew, LNHA
Administrator

ATTACHMENT 10C
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§) oridgeway christian village

111 E. Washington St. « Bensenville, IL 60106
Phone: (630)766-5800 « Fax: (630)766-5473

Mr. W. Peter Daniels, President/CEO
Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare

155 East Bush Hill Road

Eimhurst, IL. 60126

Date December 19, 2011

Dear Mr. Daniels:

This letter is to inform you of Bridgeway Christian Village's intent to accept
patients that have traditionally used the inpatient facilities designated as long term care
categories as you are discontinuing those services.

| am confident that the long time relationship between Bridgeway Christian
Village and Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare will continue as your services change.

If | can be of any assistance, please don't hesitate to cali me at 630-787-7010.

Sincere]y,/7
Linda Pyfer, MPA, LNHA
Administrator

christian homes |nc
ATTACHPREGEFT 1

www.bridgewaychr |stnanwllage.org




December 19, 2011

Z ; Rehab and Wursmg Center

Dear Mr. W. Peters Daniels:

Cedar Pointe Rehab & Nursing is located in Cicero, IL rite on the main street of Cermak Rd. We are a nine story
facility with the capacity of 485 License beds. There is also a dedicated floor of 74 certified skilled beds. Our facility

specializes in :

Pain Management = Psychiatric Services:
Wound Care Substance Abuse treatment
Specialized Rehabilitative programs,'VocationaI & Day
Services programs, Behavioral
PT/QT/Speech Therapy Modifications, Discharge

Planning, Individual & Group
Therapy, Incentive Programs,
Skills Training Groups and
Psychotropic Reduction

ShortfLong Term Care
Dementia/Alzheimer’s Unit
Hospice

HIV/AIDS Care

IV Antibiotic Therapy Program

Our facility has multitude of Interdisciplinary Team members which includes: Physicians, PA, Psychiatrists,
Psychologist, RN, Case Managers (PRSV), Dietician and our wonderful staff. We would gladly be willing to accept
any patient of yours who has the need of Long Term Care as long as they fit the list of our admissions criteria:

voe WM

Has Medicaid, Medicare, VA Benefits, Private Pay, Respite Care or Hospice.
CQver the age of 18yrs

Is assessed to need a LTC facility.

Isnot ona Vent

Not a Sex Offender or High Risk for Criminal offenses.

wWe look forward to hearing from your organization and want to be able to assist you in any way.

Sincerely,

Moshe Levovitz

Administrator

5825 West Cermak Road Cicero, Iﬂ’z’nois;?gad (708)656-9120 FAX (MG?&QMNT 10C
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Residential Care Home

‘atrick J. O'Brien
107 W. Jackson Bivd. Phone 773-378-5490
‘hicago, liinois 60644 Fax 773-378-7860

December 14, 2011

Administrator

Columbus Manor Residential
5107 West Jackson Blvd
Chicago, IL 60644

Dear Administrator:

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare will soon file a Certificate of Need (CON) application with the Ilinois
Health Facilities and Services Review Board (IHFSRB) addressing the discontinuation of the inpatient
acute menta! illness and long term care categories of service, currently operated by Elmhurst Memorial
Hospital on its 200 Berteau Avenue campus in Elmhurst. The outpatient services currently provided on
that campus include oncology, outpatient behavioral health, physical and occupational therapy, imaging,
an immedijate care center, and occupational health. Those services which, through Elmhurst Memorial
Healthcare, will continue to be provided on that campus are: oncology, physical and occupational therapy,
immediate care, imaging and occupational health, The “stand-by” emergency rootmn on that campus will
also be “discontinued”.

Tt is anticipated that the inpatient services and “stand-by” emergency room will be permanently
“discontinued” within thirty days of receiving the requested CON Permit. During the 24 month period
ending November 30, 2011, 1,523 patients were admitted to the inpatient acute mental illness unit, and
1,728 patients were admitted to the long term care unit.

Consistent with Section 1110.130 of the THFSRB’s rules, you are hereby provided the opportunity to
provide an impact statement, indicating whether your facility has the willingness and capacity to accept
without conditions, limitations or discrimination patients that have traditionally used the inpatient services
identified above. Impact statements received within 15 days of your receipt of this letter will be included
in the CON application.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. :
L Lo X A—7-/ %__Z’

Sincerely,

@ Dot Clt wid (A T

W. Peter Daniels, FACHE

President/CEOQ \ﬂ- \(f/ ﬂ

L e
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1635 E. 154th Street o Dolton, Illincis 60419
Phone 708-841-9550 ¢ Fax 708-841-4517

December 27, 2011

To: Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare

In response to your letter concerning the discontinuation of patient service at Elmhurst Memorial
Healthcare, we are able to provide the following care to long and short term patients ages 45 and over.
Our staff is trained to provide care to both medical and behavioral diagnosis.

We accept Medicare, Medicaid, Va contracts, private pay and some private insurances. Enclosed you
will find detailed information of programs that we can and cannot provide as well as outside resident

services.

We do not discriminate between sex, religion, or race, creed and sexual orientation. We do not accept
sex offenders and felons as we are located in close proximity of school.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this impact statement. We are willing to accommodate any
patients meeting our facility admission criteria.

Respgztfully Yours,

Callie Graham, LNHA

ATTACHMENT 10C




1635 E. 154th Street ¢ Dolton, Hlinois 60419
Phone 708-841-9550 ¢ Fax 708-841-4517

A SKILLED NURSING AND REHAB CENTER FOR AGES 35 AND UP

WE DO ACCEPT

TRACHEOTOMY
WOUND CARE

ALL REHAB

G-TUBE FEEDING

IV THERAPHY
HOSPICE RESPITE
PAIN MANAGEMENT

WE DQ NOT ACCEPT

VENTS

TPN

PUSH IV

NASAL TUBE FEEDING
DETOX

PERITONEAL DIALYSIS

SPECIAL PSYCH PROGRAMS DONE IN FACILITY

GATEWAY SUBSTANCE ABUSE 3 TIMES A WEEK
MONEY AND BEHAVIOR MANAGEMENT

SMOKING

SOCIALIZATION

INDEPENDENCE

OQUTSIDE PROGRAMS

HEALTHY CHOICES

PSYCHOLOGIST IN FACILITY PROGRAMS DONE BY

DR. MONTROSE 3 TIMES A WEEK
DR. KIRCHENBAUM 2 TIMES A WEEK
DR. CHILES 2 TIMES A WEEK

FACILITY DOCTORS

DR. ZAFER JAWICH (MEDICAL DIRECTOR) DR. JOLLY ANAND (PSYCH DIRECTOR)
DR, CHANDRA ANAND DR. SHYAM PUPPALA
DR, MYRLIE CASCO DR. RAD GHARAVI

DR. GARTELL KING

ATTACHMENT 10C
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Fairview Care Center of Joliet

222 H. Hommes o Jolies, [L 60435
Tel: 615.725.0443 » Fox: 815.725.1079

December 29, 2011

W. Peter Daniels, FACHE, President/CEO
Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare

155 E. Brush Hill Road

Elmbhurst, IL 60126

Dear Mr. Daniels:

Fairview Care of Joliet has received your letter regarding the discontinuation of your
inpatient and fong term care services. We do have the ability, willingness and capacity to
accept patients that have traditionally used your inpatient services. We appreciate the
opportunity to serve those who are in need. Please let us know how we can assist you
and your staff with the transition.

Thank you in advance.

Sincerely, B
X T
C
Carmen Walker = - e =

Patient Care Coordinator
Fairview Care Center of Joliet

é

ATTAC}MENT IOAN AGEMENT
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Adventist
GlenOaks Hospital

Keeping vou well

December 27, 2011

Mr, W. Peter Daniels

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Eimhurst, IL 60126

Re: Discontinuation of Acute Mental lilness and Long-term Care Categories of Service Impact Letter
Received December 15, 2011

Dear Mr. Daniels:

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with the impact Elmhurst Memorial HealthCare’s
discontinuation wouid have on Adventist GlenOaks Hospital (AGH).

As a long time provider of psychiatric services, and the only Disproportionate Share Hospital in DuPage
County, I understand the financial challenges in operating an inpatient Acute Mental Iliness {AMI) unit.
Unfortunately, due to our high occupancy in our psychiatric services, Adventist GlenOaks Hospital is not
able to accommodate any additional Acute Mental lliness patients. Year to date {through November,
2011) AGH is at 77.2% occupancy for the AMI category of service. With the limited resources available
through the county and other local social service organizations, individuals who need behavioral health
services often turn to Adventist GlenOaks Hospital's emergency department in search of care. AGH's
emergency department has had to hold 108 patients awaiting a bed in AGH's psychiatric unit or waiting
to be transferred to another facility. Discontinuing your unit would negatively impact our facility by
increasing the bottle neck that already exists in our emergency department for AMI patients.

Adventist GlenOaks Hospital already faces challenges in accommodating the volume of our patients who
need inpatient mental health services based on our current bed capacity. Discontinuing Elmhurst
Memorial’s AMI unit would add to those challenges, and would have a significant negative impact on
eur facility and on our patients by increasing the bottle neck that already exists in gur emergency
department for AMI patients, and for other patients who need emergency medical care.

Adventist GlenOaks Hospital does not have Long-term Care beds and would not be able to
accommodate this patient type.

i hope you find this information helpful as you move forward with plans for your facility.

Bruce C. Christian
Chief Executive Officer

c S ATTACHMENT 10C
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3‘815 Righland Avenue . .
Downers Grove, lllinois 60515-1550 # Advocate Good Samaritan Hospltal
Telephone 630.275.5500 ©

December 29, 2011

Via Certified Mail —Return Receipt Requested

Mr. W. Peter Daniels
President/CEQ

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 East Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, IL 60126

Re: Proposed Discontinuation of Acute Mental lliness Inpatient Services
Dear Mr. Daniels:

Thank you for your December 14, 2011 letter regarding your intent to discontinue acute mental
illness {"AMI") service at Elmhurst Memorial Hospital. Your letter inquired as to what impact your
proposed discontinuation would have on our hospital and also asked whether Advocate Good Samaritan
Hospital had the capacity to accommodate any of Eimhurst Memorial Hospital's AMI caseload.

We are concerned about the impact closure of your AMI unit would have upon other providers
and the communities that we serve. As you know, the ability to care for the psychiatric population has
become quite challenging in recent years. Over the years we have appreciated Elmhurst Memorial
Healthcare doing its part to care for this population and are concerned that your closure could impair
patients' access to psychiatric care and could strain the ability of remaining hospitals who provide this
service.

Unfortunately, we do not have sufficient information at this time to provide you with a detailed
response. We understand that we may have only 15 days to respond to your letter or there could be a
presumption that your discontinuation would not cause a negative impact.  Absent more information on
the patients affected, we are unable, at this time, to quantify the impact of your discontinuation on our
facility. We will review your CON application and, upon reviewing that detailed information can provide a
further response as to the impact your closure would create.

In connection with the proposed closure of your long term care unit, we would not anticipate any
material impact upon our facility.

Once again, thank you for your letter soliciting our input.

Very truly yours,

-~
-
%%&%7%5
Patrick ldemoto
Vice President, Business Development

A faith-based health system serving individuals, families and communities

9915123.1 Z/ / ATTAC I{iﬁ&@ﬁﬂ*
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LLOYOLA . Trisha Cassidy
MF‘DMNE Gottlieb President

& . .
ISYOJ/ ‘"' Memorlal Tel: (708} 450-4550

: Hospital Fax: (708) 681-7984

Qg At 01‘\

December 28, 2011

Mr, W. Peter Daniels, FACHE
President/CEO

Elmhurst Memorial Hospital
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, 11, 60126

Dear Mr. Daniels:

Thank you for your letter dated December 14, 2011 regarding your proposed project to discontinue
acute mental illness and long term care services at Elmhurst Memorial Hospital. You requested our
assessment of the impact these closings may have on Gottlieb Memorial Hospital’s capacity to
accommodate patients who would no longer be able to access your program.

Our current AMI unit of 12 beds has fluctuated over the last three years between 85% and 96% and is
currently at 88% occupancy. We cannot at this time accurately assess what impact this closing will

have on our facility. Once you have filed the CON application and more detail is available we will be
better able to evaluate the impact this will have on our facility and potentially on other area programs.

As you know the demand and need for mental health services and access have never been greater.
Closing an inpatient program may have a detrimental effect on this vulnerable population.

In regards to the long term care portion of your application our current unit of 34 beds has averaged
an occupancy rate of 80% over the last two years. We anticipate that this aspect of your project should
not adversely impact us.

It has been the long standing policy of Gottlieb Memorial Hospital and Loyola University Health
System that patients are accepted without conditions, limitations or discrimination. If we were able to
accept patients from your facilily, we would.do so without discrimination.

Sincerely,

Trisha Cassidy
President

Gottlieb Memorial Hospital
Loyola University Health System

2
¢ We also treat the human spirit,*
TT A TN AT

VJ.DJ.V I IU\/
-3200 Twww GottlicbHospital.org

Gottlieb Memorial Hospital | 701 W. North Ave. Melrose Park, IL 60160 | (708} 68




"JHILLCREST NURSING & REHABILITATION CENTER
777 DRAPER AVE.
JOLIET, IL 60432
(815)727-4794
FAX (815)727-1026

12-22-11

Dear Mr. Daniels

We were pleased to have received your letter and to be given the opportunity to
work closely with you in placing your patients. Hillcrest Nursing and Rehabilitation
Center is a skilled nursing facility, we provide therapies, groups and counseling, all in a
structured environment, with the goals of the patient in mind. [Ihave attached our
brochure and flyer, explaining in more vivid detail what our facility can offer. We are
more than excited to participate in helping this transition run as smoothly as possible.

Hillcrest Nursing and Rehabilitation Center looks forward to offering a safe,
relaxing, therapeutic and home like setting for your patients. We currently have beds
available in our Geriatric Psych Unit, Medicare and Medicaid Units. Please accept this
letter as our impact statement, to show that we are very interested in helping you with the
best placement possible for your patients.

Please feel free to contact me at anytime with any questions you may have
regarding our facility. Thank you again for this opportunity. Hillcrest Nursing and
Rehabilitation Center looks forward to working with you.

Sincerely,

Crystal Eichhorst

Director of Marketing/Admissions
(815)727-4794 Office
(815)370-9697 Ceil
(815)727-1026 Fax

Attachments - 3
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Wliat’s New At Hili_c‘rest Nursing & Reh'ab Cent'er_?'

Hlllcrest Nursmg & Rehab Center is a skilled nursmg facility specializing in treating mdmduals with severe
mental illness. Residents are encouraged to participate in mental health treatment in addition to their medical
care. Since its inception in.1999, The Mental Health Program has contmuously updated ifs programmmg to meet| .-
the ever-changing needs of our res1dents Please take a look below to see the new mental health programming

available at HJllcrest'

Clinical Staff T

Sierra Gabrys, M.Ed., LCPC C11mcal Director

Megan Otr, Psy. D. - Chmcal Supervisor .

Libby Reinecke, MSW; 'LSW — Social Serv1ce Dlrector

Jake Bakst, Ph. D., LCSW Chief Chnlcal Consulta.nt ‘
C. Leslie Cox Psy D., - Training Program Clinical Supervisor’
*Four Master’s level theraplsts

Five Bachelor’s level Psychiatric Techmc1ans

Nine Doctoral level student externs

" Mental Health Servrces Offered
Individual Counseling — individual therapy focused on enhancing emotional and behavioral health -
~ Group Counseling — therapy and educational groups to improve residents’ ability to manage symptoms and -
prepare themselves for community re-entry
Psychological Testing — testmg to clanfy psych1atr1c d1agr1051s and develop spec1ahzed treatment programmmg

" Doctoral Level Student Externs
Hillcrest has partnered with Doctoral training programs! Currently, nine psychology doctoral student externs are
available to meet with Hillcrest residents. Students are providing diagnostic testing to clarify clinical diagnosis as
well as providing individual therapy using evidence based practice to address the emotional and behavioral needs
of our residents. . They are also fac111tatmg psychosocial groups focused on relaxation and the expressive arts.

Mental Health Groups
=  Symptom Management — Identlfymg and coping with symptoms
Activities of Daily Living — Improving self-care
‘Substance Abuse — Recognizing triggers to substance use and coping skills to prevent relapse
Anxiety Management — Implémenting coping skills to manage triggers and symptoms of anxiety
Anger Management — Implementing coping skills to effectively express and manage anger '
Conimunity Re-entry — Leamning and practicing necessary skills for independent ltving
- Job Skills — Leammg and practlcmg skills to. maintain employment
" Men’s Issues - Dlscussmg toplcs affectmg the mental and physical health of male residents
- Women’s Issues - Discussing topics affecting the mental and physmal health of female residents
Relaxation Skills — Learning and practicing, mindfulness skills to integrate mide- -body connectedness
' Relahonshlps Processing and problem-solving complex relatlonshlp issues
Sexual Health — Discussing the practice safe sex
Self-Esteem — Fostering positive thoughts and feelings about oneself
Art Therapy — -Using art as a. form of emotional self-expression -
Music Group - Incorporating music and reminiscence therapy to engage our ger1atr1c populatlon
Diabetes Group — Providing psycho-education around diabetes issues focusmg on treatment comphance
and identifying negative effects of non—comphance

- ATTACHMENT 10C
e




; Adventist
f‘/ Hinsdale Hospital
ﬁ Keeping you well

December 27, 2011

W. Peter Daniels

Elmhurst Memarial Healthcare
155 E Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, iL 60126

Re: Discontinuation of Acute Mental iliness and Long-term Care categories of service impact letter
received December 15, 2011

Dear Mr. Daniels:

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with the impact ElImhurst Memorial Healthcare's discontinuation
would have on Adventist Hinsdale Hospital (AHH).

As a long time provider of psychiatric services in DuPage County, | understand the financial challenges in
operating an inpatient Acute Mental tliness (AMI} unit. Unfortunately, due to our high occupancy in our
psychiatric services, Adventist Hinsdale Hospital does not have the capacity to accommodate any increased
volume of Acute Mental lllness patients. Year to date {through November, 2011} AHH is at 78.5% occupancy for
the AMI category of service. While this number already reflects extremely high utilization, it is even more
significant because our AMI unit is a mixed use unit that utilizes semi-private beds. Furthermore, AHH's
emergency department already has had to hold 402 patients who were either awaiting a bed in AHH's AMI unit
or waiting to be transferred to another facility. This “holding” process makes it more difficult to provide the
best care to our mental health patients, and also potentially constrains the resources we have available to meet
the medical needs of other emergency department patients.

Adventist Hinsdale Hospital already faces challenges in accommodating the volume of our patients who need
inpatient mental health services based on our current bed capacity. Discontinuing Elmhurst Memorial’s AMI
unit would add to those challenges, and would have a significant negative impact on our facility and on our
patients by increasing the bottle neck that already exists in our emergency department for AMI patients, and for
other patients who need emergency medical care.

Adventist Hinsdale Hospital does not have Long-term Care beds and would not be able to accommodate this

patient type.

1 hope you find this information helpful as you move forward with plans for your facility.

Sincerely,
Michael J. Goebel
Chief Executive Officer ATTACHMENT 10C
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120 North Oak Street - Hinsdale, llinois 60521-3829 - 630.856.9000 - www.keepingyouweli.com




LEXINGTON

Health Care

December 28, 2011

Attention: Mr. Peter Daniels, President/CEQ
Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare

155 East Brush Hill Road

Elmhurst IL 60126

Lextngton Mr. Daniels,
of

Bloomingdale
We would like to inform you that Lexington of Bloomingdale, located at 165 South

Bioomingdale Road, Bloomingdale, IL 60108, is willing and capable to accept without
conditions, limitations or discrimination patients that need Long Term Care Categories

of service.

Please feel free to contact us if you have any questions at: 630-980-8700.

Respectfully,

165 South Bloomingdale Road
Bloomingdale, Minois 60108

ATTACHMENT 10Cte! 630 980 8700

Q (- fax 630 980 6170




LEXINGTON

Health Care

December 29, 2011

W. Peter Daniels, FACHE
President/CEO
Elmhurst Hospital

Lexington 155 12 Rrush Hill Road

of

Eimburst

Elmhurst, IL. 60126

Dear Mr.Daniels

Lexington of Elmhurst has the availability in beds and is willing to accept without
conditions your patients from the T.C.C unit as well as future patients. Our sub-acute
center has the capability to provide all the necessary services needed. With our current
proximity in relationship to your location we are able 1o provide a strong continuity of
rehabilitation services with your hospital thus providing a strong network of medical
services. The majority of our physicians also have medical privileges with your hospital.
We look forward to a continuing relationship for the upcoming year and beyond. [f you
should need additional information in relationship to our services please feel free to
contact me at the facility. My number is 630-832-2300.

Stincerely,

o

William H. Pfeiffer, LNHA, LSW
Administrator

420 West Butterfield Road
Elmhurst, Illinois 60126

tel 630 832 2300
ATTACHMENT qu.u 630 832 7043
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La Grange
Health Care Center

LEXINGTON

HEALTH NETWORK

Leader of Integrated Health Services

Inpatient Rehabilitation
Inpatient Specialty Care
independent Living
Assisted Living
Ltong-Term Care
Memory Care

Home Health Care
Hospice Care

Private Care Services

December 29, 2011

W. Peter Daniels, FACHE
President/CEQ

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, lllinois 60126

Dear Mr. Daniels:

Thank you for your letter announcing Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare filing a CON application addressing
the discontinuation of the inpatient acute mental iliness and long term care categories of service.

| would like to take this opportunity to formally provide an impact statement, indicating Lexington of
LaGrange’s willingness and capacity to accept without conditions, limitations or discrimination patients
that have traditionally used Elmhurst’s inpatient services.

Lexington of Lagrange appreciates this opportunity to help ElImhurst Memorial and the community we
both serve.

Michelle Pardun
Administrator

LS ATTACHMENT 10C
4735 Willow Springs Road | La Grange, lllinois 60525 | Phone: 708.352.6900 | Fax: 708.482.0239 | lexingtonhealth.com




Lextngton

of

Lombard

LEXINGTON

Health Care

December 207 201 & e ooy s e e T

ST Wt

W. Peter Daniels, FACHE
President/CEO

Elmhurst Memorial Hospital
155 East Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, I1 60126

Dear Peter,

[ am writing to you in regards to your Certificate of Need (CON)
application with the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board.

Lexington Health Care Center of Lombard is willing to and has the capacity to
accept patients that were admitted to the long term care unit.

Please call upon me if [ may be of any further assistance.

Thank you for your consideration.

Qnnd T Corcorin)

Quina T. Corcoran, Administrator

Sincerely

2100 South Finley Road

Lombard, Hlinois 60148

tel 630 495 4000

47 ATTACHMENT 10Gex 630 455 2609




Advocate
“Lutheran General Hospital
Lutheran General Children’s Hospital

1775 Dempster Streat || Park Ridge, IL 60068 || T 847.723.2210 {{ advocatehealth.com

January 5, 2012

Mr. W. Peter Daniels, FACHE
President and Chief Executive Officer
Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare

155 E. Brush Hill Road

Elmhurst, [L 60126

Dear Mr. Daniels,

Thank you for your December 14, 2011 letter regarding your intent to discontinue
inpatient acute mental iliness and long-term care categories of service at Elmhurst
Memorial Hospital. Your letter inquired regarding any concems this discontinuation
would have on our facility.

We do not anticipate any adverse impact to Advocate Lutheran General Hospital/
Advocate Lutheran General Children’s Hospital from the discontinuation of inpatient
acute mental iliness services, however, we are concerned about the impact this closure
would have upon other providers, especially Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital, and the
communities that are currently served by Elmhurst. As you are well aware, it has
become very challenging to care for this patient population.

In regards to the proposed closure of your long-term care services, we would not
anticipate any impact upon our facility.

Thank you for your letter soliciting our input.
Sincerely,
—TR
y L

Anthony A. Armada, FACHE
President

Related to the Evangelical Lutheran Church in America and the United Church of Christ . .
Recipient of the Magnet award for excsllence in nursing services by the Agncan Nurses Credentialipg EF1CE W"-i' g T 10C




MACNEAL

WAN GUARD ! HosPITAL

3249 South Oak Park Avenue
Berwyn, Ulinois 60402
Phone: 708-783-2100

www, macncal.com

January 12, 2012

W. Peter Daniels

President & CEO

Eimhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, IL 60126

Dear Peter:

Discontinuation of inpatient psychiatric services on your Berteau Campus will not have an
adverse impact on the programming and services at MacNeal Hospital in Berwyn, IL. MacNeal
provides inpatient psychiatric services to adults (18-64) and geriatric patients (65+). We
currently staff and operate 48 inpatient beds (in 4 clinically distinct units) and will within the
next 6 weeks be opening an additional unit bringing our total psychiatric bed count to 62. Based
on your psychiatric average inpatient daily census of 12 patients, we anticipate having available
capacity to accommodate any patients that may come from Elmhurst Memorial Hospital.

In coordination with one of our sister hospitals, Westlake, we are actively working with your
facility to establish a transfer agreement that will serve your psychiatric emergency department
patients and will provide them with an expedited transfer directly to our inpatient units with
physician admission orders. Our management teams are also working collaboratively on the
clinical transfer process and protocols to best serve the needs of these patients.

Let me know if you should have any questions or should need additional information.

Sincerely,

Brian J. Lemon
Chief Executive Qfficer

ATTACHMENT 10C




& Marianjoy Rehabilitation Hospital
Y 26W171 Roosavelt Road
s VWheaton Franciscan Healthcare Wheaton, lllinois 60187

Tel 630.909.7502

Kathleen C. Yosko
Fax 630.909.7501

Prasident and CFO

January 6, 2012

Peter Daniels

President/CEO

Elmhurst Memorial Health System
155 E. Brush Hill Road

Elmhurst, IL 60126

Dear Peter,

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a statement regarding the impact of the planned closing of the
Transitional Care Center {TCC) at your Berteau campus. As you know the relationship between Elmhurst
Memorial Hospital and Marianjoy is long-standing and built on a foundation of mutual respect and
admiration. Over the years we feel the partnership forged between our two institutions has met an
important community need, and we have appreciated the opportunity to be included in your efforts to
plan for the future of post-acute care services within your health system and in the Elmhurst

community.

Given the care and thought you, your team, and the Board of Directors have put into the overall plan for
the Berteau campus, and all of the services offered there, the leadership of Marianjoy is supportive of
your intention to close the TCC. We say this in full recognition of how it will change our contractual
relationship with you, but the case you have made is compelling and we are in agreement with your
approach. Your plan for the transition of patients requiring the same level of skilled nursing care
provided at the TCC is well designed, and we are confident it will meet their needs. Further, Marianjoy
stands ready to accept patients from EMH who require the same skilled care offered in the TCC. We are
also impressed with the time and due diligence you have taken to insure members of the EMH Medical
Staff are in agreement with your approach as well, The support of the attending and consulting
physictans at EMH is crucial to the success of your long-term plans for the transition of patients across
the continuum of care. We are confident you have earned that support from these physicians.

As you make this change, we look forward to the opportunity to find new ways to continue to support
the rehahilitation services for patients of Eimhurst Memorial Hospital.

Thank you again for seeking our input on this issue.

Sincerely

/R NAN

Kathleen C. Yosko
President and CEQ

ATTACHMENT 10C
22




Nursing & Rehabilitation
December 19, 2011

W. Peter Daniels, FACHE
President/CEO

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, 1L 60126

Dear Mr. Daniels,

Meadowbrook Manor (339 S. 9" Avenue LaGrange, 1L 60525) is willing and has the
capacity to accommodate the needs of patients from Elmhurst Memorial Hospital’s long
term care unit. Meadowbrook Manor is an intermediate and skilled nursing and
rehabilitation center that accepts Medicare, Medicaid, Medicaid pending and several
insurance carriers as payer sources.

It is the policy of Meadowbrook Manor to admit and treat all residents without regard to
race, religion or national origin. The same requirements for admissions are applied to all.
There is no distinction in eligibility for, or in the manner of providing any patient service.
All services are available without distinction to all residents and visitors regardless of
race, religion or national origin. All persons and organizations having occasion either to
refer residents for admission or to recommend are advised to do without regard to race,
religion or national origin.

Sincerely yours,

RN %D,

David Shires
Administrator
(708)354-4660 Ext. 180

720 Raymond Drive 339 S. 9th Avenue 431 West Remington Boulevard
Naperville, IL 60563 LaGrange, IL. 60525 Bolingbrook, IL 60440
630-355-0220 fax: 630-717-5180 708-354-4660 fax: 708-354-1355 630-759-1112 fax: 630-759-6925

ATTACHMENT 10C

www.meadoﬂ@’kmauor.com
A Butterfield Health Care Group Affiliate
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January 9, 2012

Mr. W. Peter Daniels, FACHE !
President/CEO :
Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmbhurst, IL. 60126

wepes g

Thank you for providing Northwest Community Healthcare (NCH) the opportunity
to respond with an impact statement regarding your Certificate of Need (CON)
application with the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board. As you i
highlighted in your memo, your organization is planning on discontinuing services
for patients requiring acute inpatient care for mental illnesses and long term care.

We have reviewed the impact of Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare’s decision to
discontinue these services on NCH, NCH does feel that the discontinuation of these
services will have an impact on our organization, We are currently experiencing
increased need for services in the care of the mentally ill. We also do not believe
that NCH will have the capacity to accept the additional mentally ill patients
without conditions or limitations.

Should you wish to discuss this further, please contact me at 847-618-5015.

Sincerely,

Bt

Bruce K. Crowther

President & CEQ

BKC: kav

Bruee K. Crowther 47 618.5015 tel g
President and Chief Executive Officer 847 618.5009 fax {

berawther@neh,org _7 % ATTAC NT 1 O;C




Oat DBrook

HealthCare

December 29, 2011

W. Peter Daniels, FACE
President/CEQ

Elmhurst Memorial Hospital
155 E. Brush Hill Rd.
Elmhurst, IL 60126

Dear Mr. Daniels:
| am writing to indicated that our facility, Oak Brook HealthCare Centre, to the extent that our skilled
nursing facility license permits, has the willingness and capacity to accept without conditions, limitations

or discrimination patients that have traditionally used the inpatient services at the 200 Berteau Avenue
campus of Elmhurst Memorial Hospital.

You may contact me directly should you have additional questions.

Sincerely,

oanne Bedrosian
Administrator

7_(’ ATTACHMENT 10C
2013 Midwest Road ¢ Oak Brook, IL 60523 » Phone 630-495-0220 * Fax 630-629-5760
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Sentor Living

December 19, 2011

Hlinois Health Facilities and
Services Review Board

2nd Floor

525 West Jefferson Street
Springfield, lllinois 62761

To whom it may concern:

This letter is in response to the notice of intention to file a Certificate of Need {CON), dated
December 14, 2011, for the discontinuation of acute mental illness and long term care
categories of service, presently operated by EImhurst memorial Hospital on its 200 Berteau

Avenue Campus in Elmburst, llinois.

Please know that Plymouth Place, a long-term care licensed facility in nearby LaGrange Park,
Illinois, has unused capacity for inpatient long-term care, physical therapy, occupational, and
speech therapy. Plymouth Place will certainly work with the hospital to provide such services in
our community. Most recently Plymouth Place is operating at approximately 83% capacity.
Therefore, we do not believe the discontinuation of the above mentioned long-term care beds

will present a hardship to the general public in our area.

Please know however, that Plymouth Place is not licensed, nor is it qualified, to accept acute
mental illness patients either on a short-term or a long-term basis.

Piymouth Place is willing to discuss how we may be of services in our area. If any questions
please feel free to contact me.

incenely, ‘
15740

/
Dale Litburn

Chief Operating Officer

c: W. Peter Daniels

315 North LaGrange Road,’ZéTangc Park, Illinois 60528 BRACHMENT 10C
(708)354-0340 - www.plymouthplace.org
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\»)/’ PROVIDENCE

Life Scrvices

January 13, 2012

Peter Daniels

President & CEO

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, IL 60126

Dear Mr. Daniels,

We understand Eimhurst Memorial Hospital intends to file a Certificate-of-Need application for the
discontinuation of its long-term care beds, which currently offer skilled nursing services to patients in
our community. Concurrently, Park Place Christian Community of Elmhurst intends to apply for a
Certificate-of-Need to allow open admission at our skilled nursing unit {licensed as long term care beds

by {DPH).

By this letter, we offer our full support of your application to discontinue your long-term care beds.
Further, should our Certificate-of-Need application be approved, we will be prepared to accommodate
all eligible patients from your facility without discrimination or limftation.

We look forward to the opportunity of working with your team to provide the highest possible fevel of
care and as seamless a transition as we can for your patients.

Sincerely,

L oA —

Richard Schutt
Chief Executive Officer
Providence Life Services

18601 North Creck Drive, Suite A« Tinley Park. llinois 60477
708.342.8100 ;e -+ 708342.8000: 1 - - providencelifeservices. .

PROVIDENCE LIFE SERVICES 15 A CHRISTIAN 5013 3 NOTFOR-PROF T ORGAMNZAT.CiN
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HEALTHCARE CENTER — A SKILLED NURSING & REHABILITATION CENTER

December 27, 2011

W. Peter Daniels, FACHE
Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, IL. 60126

To Whom It May Concern:

We are responding to the recent letter regarding the discontinuation of inpatient
long term care categories of service currently operated by Elmhurst Memorial
Hospital on 200 Berteau Avenue campus.

Tower Hill Healthcare Center is a 206 bed Skilled Nursing and Rehabilitation Center
located in South Elgin, IL. Services provided include long or short term care.

24 hour skilled nursing and rehabilitation can be provided. We are dual certified
Medicare/Medicaid. Tower Hill also has a 31 bed state certified Alzheimer’s Unit.

Payer sources can include Medicare, Medicaid, Medicaid Pending, Private, Insurance and

Hospice.

I have enclosed a brochure outlining our services. If we can be of help serving patients
that may be impacted by the closure of the Berteau campus please let us know.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide services.

S

. kbl

eremy Amster, L.N.H.A. Pam Hilderbrand
Administrator Community Relations Director

Sincerely;

“Clinical Echeﬁ:—Campassionate Care” ATTACHMENT 10C

759 KANE STREET, SOUTH ELGIN, ILLINQIS 60177 = (B47) 697-3310 « FAX (B47} 697-3354
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December 21, 2011

W. Peter Daniels, FACHE
President/CEQ

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, L 60126

Re: Proposed Discontinuation of Elmhurst Hospital's Long Term Care Category of Service

Dear Mr. Daniels

Transitional Care of Naperville is responding to your letter dated December 14, 2011, regarding our
capacity to accept additional long term patients. We are unable to accept any patients at this time
hecause our building is still in the development stage.

Thank you for including us in the opportunity to provide care for your patients.

if you have any questions, please feel free to contact me via phone at 847-720-8700 or via email at

bspeck@tc-mgmt.com

Sincerely

E‘)ticu\A(fQL /

Transitional Care Management
Brian G. Speck
CFO

? fs APHEIR I oc

847720.8700 - 6400 Shafer Court, Suite 600, Rosemont, lilinois 60018

Lt




WANGUARD

HEALTH]|] CHICAGDO Murkel President

January 12, 2012

W._ Peter Daniels

President and CEQ

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Rd
Elmhurst, IL 60126

Dear Peter:

As President of Vanguard Health Chicago, I write in support of Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare's
plan to discontinue inpatient psychiatric services on your Berteau campus.

Vanguard owns and operates four hospitals in the Chicago metropolitan area — MacNeal
Hospital, Louis A. Weiss Memorial Hospital, West Suburban Medical Center, and Westlake
Hospital. Both MacNeal Hospital in Berwyn and Westlake Hospital in Melrose Park, our
facilities closest to Elmhurst, provide inpatient adult psychiatric services. Between the two
hospitais, we currently opcrate 81 inpatient adult psychiatric beds and plans are underway to
open an additional unit of 14 beds at MacNeal and to add 20 beds at Westlake.

Based on your average daily census of 12 psychiatric inpatients, we anlicipate having available
capacity to accommodate any patients that may come from your Berteau campus to MacNeal or
Westlake.

In addition, Vanguard Health Chicago is actively working with your facility to cstablish a
transfer agreement that will serve your psychiatric emergency department paticnts and provide
them with expedited transfers, as appropriate, directly to the inpatient units at MacNeal or
Westlake. Management teams at both hospitals are also working collaboratively on the clinical
transfer process and protocols to best serve the needs of these patients.

Please feel free to contact me if you need further information.

Sincerely,

% ,/f;;

Willilam T. Foley
President
Vanguard Health Chicago

150 North Wacker Drive  Suite 700 Chicago, 11. 60606 ﬁ’ZE}"-S(&-‘I-ﬁ]DU 1 773-564-607 T AGERAENT Q6



Westlake . 1225 LAKE STREET

i}&k 3 . I MELROSE PARK, IL 60140
L HOSplta (708) 938.7201

WILLIAM A, BROWRN, FACHE
Chief Executive Officer

January 12,2012

W. Peter Daniels

President & CEQ

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
t55 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, i1 60126

Dear Peter:

‘This letter is in support of Elmhurst Memorial Hospital’s plan to discontinue inpatient psychiatric services
on your Berteau Campus. The discontinuation of this service will not have an adverse impact on the
program and setvices at Vanguard Westlake Hospital. Westlake Hospital provides adult psychiatric
services and we currently are licensed for 33 AMI beds. We are in the process of adding 20 additional
AM]I beds increasing our Tuture acute mental illness inventory to 53 beds. Based on your average daily
psychiatric census of 12 patients, we anticipate having available capacity to accommodate any such patients
that may come from your Hospital,

In coordination with our sister Hospital, MacNeal, we are currenily developing a iransTer agreement so that
your cmergency department can expeditiously transfer psychiatric patients, as appropriate, directly to our
inpatient unit. In addition, our management teams are working on protocols and policies to ensure that we

meet the needs of these patients.

Please do not hesifate to contact me if you have further questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

ZihitteeA- Brer—

William A. Brown, FACHE
Chief Executive Officer

WaAB/




Windmll N ursing Pavilion, Ltd

December 20, 2011

Mr. Peter Daniels, FACHE
Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
155 E. Brush Hill Road
Elmhurst, IL 60126

Re: Available Capacity To Assume Additional Long-Term Care Patients

Dear Mr. Daniels:

Windmill Nursing Pavilion, LTD does have available capacity to assume
additional long-term care patients.

Windmill's total bed capacity is 150 beds, our number of available beds is 15,
and our average 2011 daily census was 133 patients.

Windmill can accept up to 10 additional patients and assist you with relocating
these patients as soon as needed.

If you have any questions, please contact me at 708-339-0600.

Respectfully,

o ‘ g-;i,@qg}o'S&ﬁth“‘wah.l;iiﬂéﬁue}
W MN ESnut.h olland Il].mo:s 60473
Annmarie Harrington Tel?Oé3390600 T
Administrator EF".,DF 708.339.2766 "
Sent via certified and registered mail. i“'_“‘:""dj”a_m_i"hc'“dm‘ "

7 2 ATTACHMENT 10C

A Member of the Dynamic Health Care Family
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—& Elmhurst Memorial
Healthcare

January 16, 2012

Illinois Health Facilities
Planning Board

525 West Jefferson

Springfield, IL 62761

To Whom It May Concern:

Please be advised that no adverse action has been taken by the IDPH during the
past three years against Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare or any related entity.

Further, the IHFPB and/or its staff is herein given authorization to review the
records of Elmhurst Memorial Health and related licensed health care facilities,

concerning those facilities’ licensure and certification.
Sincerely,

W. Peter Daniels
President and CEO

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME

THIS \\ort DAY OF &\umﬁ;{ L2012

N Y PUBLIC

Official Seal
Nicole M Vassolo
Notary Public State of Wingig
My Commission Expires 04/04/2012

155 E. Brush Hill Road  Elmhurst. IL60126 (331) 2211000 f 2

ATTACHMENT 11
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McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

McGladrey

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees of
Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
Elmhurst, {llinois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and
Subsidiaries ("Elmhurst") as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of
operations and changes in unrestricted net assets, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of Eimhurst's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reascnable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 2011
and 2010, and the results of their operations and changes in net assets, and their cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

%c%//mf&m/ ceo

Chicago, Hlinois
September 23, 2011

& ATTACHMENT 39

tAcGladrey Is the brand under which RSM McGladrey, Inc. and IAcGladrey & Pulen, LLP serve dlents’ business needs. Member of RS Intmational network, a netwvork of
tndependent 2ccounting, tax and consulting firms.

The two hrms aperate a3 separate legal entitles In an altemative practice structure.




Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Assets
Cuirent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 23,339,411 14,193,379
Short-term investments 1,111,519 1,108,683
Patient accounts receivable - less allowances for uncoliectible
accounts of $11,261,778 in 2011 and $7,794,000 in 2010 58,609,224 51,796,446
Inventories 7,518,757 5,279,893
Prepaid expenses, interest receivable, and other 12,026,879 11,599,004
Amounts due from third-parly payors 12,362,561 840,000
Total current assets 114,968,351 84,817,405
Investments and Assets Limited as to Use:
Internally designated for capital improvements 254,728,404 340,408,845
Externally designated investments under bond agreements 31,772,065 71,116,223
Other investments and assets limited as to use 5,184,913 4 237,239
Total investments and assets limited as to use 291,685,382 415,762,307
Land, Buildings, and Equipment - Net 617,754,041 487,966,183
11,070,865 12,218,977

Prepaid Pension, Deferred Financing Costs, and Other

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and other
Amounts due to third-party payors
Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities
Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Maturities
Other Liabilities

Accrued Pension
Total liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanenfly restricted

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

§r

1,035,478,639

§ 1,000,764 872

72,598,475 35,414,882
23,278,212 28,990,529
28,351,919 34,403,936
5,330,004 5,225,004
129,558,610 104,034,351
506,862,261 512,051,799
33,804,815 43,494,872
15,422,911 40,916,765
685,648,597 700,497,787
344,521,228 293,650,297
4,819,299 6,127,273
489,515 489,515
349,830,042 300,267,085

1,035,478,639

§ 1,000,764 872

ATTACHMENT 39




Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Revenues:
Net patient service revenue 360,897,381 $ 349,185,107
Other revenue 17,063,138 18,123,193
' 377,960,519 367,308,300
Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 175,114,386 170,892,433
Supplies 57,063,638 55,534,768
Purchased services and other 98,047,782 89,926,337
Provision for bad debts 25,233,612 14,243,404
Depreciation 34,543,448 17,402,591
Medicaid tax 7,310,342 7,304,160
One-time costs associated with new hospital 4,628,954 -
401,942,162 355,303,693
Operating (loss) income (23,981,643) 12,004,607
Nonoperating income (expense):
Investment income (loss} 13,252,244 (2,834,768)
Unrealized gains on investments 26,592,360 36,597,287
Interest expense (7,662,371) (7,845,683)
Amortization of deferred financing costs (145,481) {133,927)
Cash settlements on interest rate swaps 1,008,257 {352,802)
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps 4,694,741 (467,429)
Change in unrealized gain on hedge fund investments 8,082,905 1,944,451
45,822,655 26,907,129
Excess of revenue over expenses 21,841,012 38,911,736
Other changes in unrestricted net assets:
Amortization of gain on discontinuation of hedge accounting 178,463 177,089
Pension and supplemental pian related changes, other than
net periodic pension cost 26,851,456 (31,192,373)
Temporarily restricted contributions released for capital projects 2,000,000 95,344
29,029,919 {30,919,940)
Increase in unrestricted net assets 50,870,931 7,991,796

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Unrestricted net assets:
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 21841012 $ 38911736
Amortization of gain on discontinuation of hedge accounting 178,463 177,089
Pension and supplemental plan related changes, other than
net periodic pension cost 26,851,456 {31,192,373)
Temporarily restricted contributions released for capital projects 2,000,000 95,344
Increase in unrestricted net assets 50,870,931 7,991,796
Temporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions for medical education programs,
capital purchases, and other purposes 2,712,314 6,409,527
Net assets released from restrictions and used for operations,
capital purposes, and medical education programs {4,020,288) (1,978,989)
(Decrease) increase in temporarily restricted net assets (1,307,974) 4,430,538
Increase in net assets 49,562 957 12,422,334
Net assets:
Beginning of year ‘ 300,267,085 287,844,751
End of year ~$ 349,830,042 $§ 300,267 085
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

Change in patient accounts receivable:
Net increase in patient accounts receivable

(46,542,020)

2011 2010
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase in net assets $ 49,562,957 § 12422334
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to
net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 34,543,448 17,402,591
Loss on disposal of assets 27,939 265,640
Amortization of deferred financing costs 145,481 133,927
Change in unrealized loss on investments (34,675,265) {38,541,738)
Unrealized (gain) ioss on interest rate swaps (4,694,741} 467,429
Restricted contributions {2,000,000) {95,610)

(16,108,975)

Increase in contractual allowances 36,810,486 9,909,575
Provision for bad debts 25,233,612 14,243,404
Write-offs of accounts receivable (22,314,856) {15,198,766)

Increase (decrease) in prepaid pension, deferred financing costs,
and other 1,002,631 (4,307,683)
Net change in other assets and liabilities (57,837,719) 39,948 495
Net cash {used in) pravided by operating activities {20,738,047) 20,540,623

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisition of buildings and equipment

{125,812,087)

(195,424,108)

Proceeds from sale of buildings and equipment 31,350 -
Purchases of investments (40,198,167) (103,024,313)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 198,947,521 258,319,165
Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities 32,968,617 (40,129,254)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from restricted contributions - net of
assets released from restrictions 2,000,000 95,610
Repayment of long-term debt (5,084,538) {4,988,685)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,084,538) {4,893,075)
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9,146,032 (24,481,706)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 14,493,379 38,675,085
End of year $ 23339411  § 14193379
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
interest paid, net of amounts capitalized $ 11,296,800 $ 4,317,457
Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Investing and Financing Activity:
Capital acquisitions funded through accounts payable $ 47639526 § 9,061,018
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization: Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries ("Elmhurst”) is an integrated delivery
system that provides health care services to the residents of eastern Du Page and western Cook
counties. Elmhurst provides a broad continuum of services and is committed to providing high-quality,
comprehensive patient care that is designed to meet the total needs of the patient.

Elmhurst functions in a leadership role in improving the health of the community through an emphasis on
health maintenance, education, and rehabilitation, as well as diagnosis and treatment.

Elmhurst is the sole corporate member of Elmhurst Memorial Hospital {the "Hospital") and is also the sole
shareholder of EImhurst Memorial Health Technologies, LLC (“HTI"). The Hospital is the sole corporate
member of Elmhurst Memorial Home Health ("Home Health") and Elmhurst Memorial Hospital Foundation

(the "Foundation”).

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and
transactions of Eimhurst, the Hospital, Home Heaith, HTI, and the Foundation. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Although estimates are considered to be fairly stated at the time that the estimates are made,
actual results could differ. The use of estimates and assumptions in the preparation of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements is primarily related to the determination of the net patient accounts
receivable and settlements with third-party payors, the accrual for professional liability, accrued pension
cost and the valuation of alternative investments and derivative financial instruments. Due to
uncertainties inherent in the estimation and assumption process, it is at least reasonably possible that
changes in these estimates and assumptions in the near-term would be material to the consolidated

financial statements.

Cash equivalents: Elmhurst considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash equivalents approximates fair value.

Throughout the year, Eimhurst may have amounts on deposit with financial institutions in excess of those
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Elmhurst has not experienced any losses in such

accounts.

Patient accounts receivable, allowance for uncollectible accounts and amounts due from/to third
party-payors: The collection of receivables from third-party payors and patients is the Hospital's primary
source of cash for operations and is critical to its operating performance. The primary collection risks
relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient accounts for which the primary insurance payor has paid,
but patient responsibility amounts {(deductibles and copayments) remain outstanding. Patient
receivables, where a third-party payor is responsible for paying the amount, are carried at a net amount
determined by the original charge for the service provided, less an estimate made for contractual
allowances or discounts provided to third-party payors.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Patient receivables due directly from patients are carried at the original charge for the service provided
less amounts covered by third-party payors and less estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts and
charity. Management estimates the allowance for uncollectible accounts based on the aging of its
accounts receivable and its historical collection experience for each payor type. Management estimates
the allowance for charity based on the Hospital’s charity care policy and historical charity care
experience. Recoveries of receivables previously written off as uncollectible are recorded as a reduction
of the provision for bad debts when received. The provision for bad debts for the year ended June 30,
2011, was increased by a change in estimate retated to prior year receivables of approximately
$4,300,000.

The past due status of receivables is determined on a case-by-case basis depending on the payor
responsible. Interest is generally not charged on past due accounts.

Receivables or payables related to estimated settlements on various third-party payor contracts, primarily
Medicare and Blue Cross, are reported as amounts due from or to third-party payors. Significant changes
in payor mix, business office operations, economic conditions or trends in federal and state governmental
health care coverage could affect the Hospital's collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and results
of operations.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out} or market. Inventories consist
mainly of supplies.

Investments and assets limited as to use: Investments in equity securities, mutual funds, and debt
securities are measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements, based on prices available in
active markets for identical instruments. Eilmhurst has designated its investments as trading securities.
Accordingly, investment gains and losses (including interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains
and losses) are included in excess of revenue over expenses unless the income or loss is restricted by
donor or law {see Note 5). The fair values of investments in hedge funds and equity securities held in
commingled funds are valued based on the net asset value provided by the respective fund manager or
general partners, where the fair value of the underlying securities, which may or may not be traded in an
active market, is the most significant input to the resulting net asset value. Elmhurst is a passive
participant in these funds and manages its holdings in these funds similar to its holdings in other financial
instruments. Investments in real estate are measured at fair value based on current appraisal value.
Unrealized gains and losses on hedge funds are included in excess of revenue over expenses (see Note
5). Investment returns on permanently restricted assets are allocated to purposes specified by the donor,
either as temporarily restricted or unrestricted.

Assets limited as to use consist of investments set aside by the Board of Trustees for future capital
acquisitions and improvements, medical education, and other health care programs over which the Board
retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes. Additionally, assets limited
as to use include investments held by trustees under bond agreements.

Fair value of financial instruments: Financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash
equivalents, investments, derivatives, patient accounts receivable, amounts due to/from third-party
payors, accounts payable, and long-term debt. Except for derivatives and long-term debt, the fair value of
these instruments approximated their financial statement carrying amount at June 30, 2011 and 2010,
because of their short-term maturity. See Note 6 for additional fair value disclosures.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Joint ventures: Elmhurst Memorial Hospital has a joint venture arrangement with Eimhurst Outpatient
Surgery Center, LLC which includes a 51.6% and 55.6% percent interest in the entity as of June 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively. This investment, which totaled $2,916,787 and $3,089,106 as of June 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively, is accounted for on the equity basis and is included in other assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare has a joint venture arrangement with Cyberknife Center of Chicago, LLC,
which includes a 20.0% percent interest in the entity. This investment, which totaled $109,807 and
$239.102 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, is accounted for on the equity basis and is included
in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Land, buildings, and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at fair
market value at the date of donation. Depreciation for land, buildings, and equipment is provided over the
estimated useful lives of each class of depreciable assets using the straight-line method and the half-year
convention. Land improvements are depreciated over 25.5 to 40.5 years, buildings over 20510405
years, and equipment over 3.5 to 20.5 years. Interest expense incurred during the development and
construction of properties, net of interest income earned on unspent bond proceeds, is capitalized as part
of the property cost and is depreciated over the useful life of the property. Net interest expense of
$9,198,075 and $7,602,526 was capitalized for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted support and
are included in the income or loss from operations uniess explicit donor stipulations specify how the
donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the
assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are
reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets
must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-
lived assets are placed in service.

Deferred financing costs and intangible assets: Expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of
long-term debt are deferred and amortized over the term of the related financing using a method which
approximates the effective-yield method. Intangible assets are principally amortized over a period of 15
years using the straight-line method.

Derivative instruments and hedging activities: Derivative instruments are recorded at fair value, which
considers, among other factors, nonperformance risk. Gains and losses on nonhedging or the ineffective
portion of hedging derivative instruments are recorded as components of nonoperating income and gains
and losses on the effective portion of hedging instruments are recorded as components of Other Changes
in Unrestricted Net Assets within the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Unrestricted
Net Assets (see Note 8). When a hedge is dedesignated but the hedged transactions are still probable to
occur, gains and losses on the hedging instrument arising subsequent to the date of dedesignation are
recorded as components of nonoperating income, and gains or losses previously recorded as
components of Other Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets are amortized to nonoperating income when
the hedged transactions affect income.

Accrued professional liability: The provision for accrued professional liability includes estimates of the
ultimate costs of claims incurred but not reported and is actuarially determined.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net assets: Elmhurst may classify its net assets into three categories, which are unrestricted, temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted.

Unrestricted net assets are reflective of revenues and expenses associated with the principal operating
activities of EImhurst and are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met either
by actions of Elmhurst and/or the passage of time. Assets released from restrictions that are used for the
purchase of fixed assets or capital purposes are reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Changes in Net Assets as additions to unrestricted net assets. Assets released from restrictions that
are used for operating purposes are reported in the Consclidated Statements of Operations and Changes
in Net Assets as Other Revenue. Restricted earnings are recorded as temporarily restricted net assets
until amounts are expended in accordance with donors' specifications.

Permanently restricted net assets are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained
permanently by EImhurst.

Donor-restricted gifts: Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value
at the date the promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as either
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the
use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Net patient service revenue: Elmhurst has agreements with third-party payors that provide for
payments to Elmhurst at amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include
prospectively determined rates per discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, and per diem
payments. Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors, which are subject to audit by administering agencies.
Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs are accrued on an estimated basis
and are adjusted in future periods as final settiements are determined. See Note 2 for additional

information.

Uncompensated care and community service: Elmhurst provides care to all patients regardless of
their ability to pay. Uncompensated care and community service provided by Elmhurst are excluded from
net patient service revenue. See Note 4 for additional information.

Excess of revenue over expenses: The Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in
Unrestricted Net Assets include excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets,
which are excluded from excess of revenue over expenses, include the effective portion of interest rate
swaps, pension and supplemental plan related changes other than net periodic pension cost and
contributions of fong-lived assets, including assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction
were o be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets.

Operating income: The Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net
Assets include operating income. Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from operating
income, include unrestricted contributions, interest and financing costs, and other income which
management views as outside of normal operating activity.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income taxes: Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare, EImhurst Memorial Hospital, ElImhurst Memorial Home
Health and Elmhurst Memorial Hospital Foundation have received determination letters from the Internal
Revenue Service stating that they are exempt from the payment of income taxes under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, income taxes are not provided for in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

HTI, a wholly owned subsidiary of Elmhurst, is a for-profit limited liability corporation.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, HTI had net operating income of $123,067 for financial statement
purposes that was offset by previous years' net operating losses (NOL). In accordance with Internal
Revenue Service regulations, an NOL may be carried forward 20 years to offset taxable income that
exists in those years. At June 30, 2011, approximately $2,393,165 of NOL was available to be carried

forward.

As a result of the NOL, HT1 has no tax expense or tax liability for the years ended June 30, 2011 and
2010. The deferred tax asset related to the NOL is offset by a valuation allowance, as realization of the tax

beneiits of the NOL carryforward is not assured.

Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Elmhurst Memoriat Healthcare Group each file a Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax) annually. When these returns are filed, it is highly certain that
some positions taken would be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities, while others are
subject to uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the amount of the position that would
ultimately be sustained. Examples of tax positions common to health systems include such matiers as the
following: the tax exempt status of each entity, the continued tax exempt status of bonds issued by the
obligated group, the nature, characterization and taxability of joint venture income and various positions
relative to potential sources of unrelated business taxable income (UBIT). UBIT is reported on Form
990T, as appropriate. The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the consolidated financial statements
in the period during which, based on all available evidence, management believes that it is more likely
than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or
litigation processes, if any.

Tax positions are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the “more likely
than not” recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50
percent likely to be realized on settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits
associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is reflected as
a liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets along with any
associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination. Upon
the adoption of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)-issued guidance at July 1, 2008, and
as of each subsequent fiscal year-end, there were no unrecognized tax benefits identified and recorded

as a liability.

Forms 990 and 990T filed by EImhurst Memorial Healthcare and its subsidiaries are subject to
examination by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) up to three years from the extended due date of each
return. Forms 990 and 990T filed by Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and its subsidiaries are no longer
subject to examination for the tax years 2006 and prior.

§( 3 ATTACHMENT 39




Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Pending pronouncements: In August 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2010-23, Heaith Care Entities (Topic 954) — Measuring Charity Care for Disclosure. ASU 2010-23
requires disclosures of charity care based on the health care provider's direct and indirect costs of
providing charity care services, the method used to identify or estimate such costs, and funds received to
offset or subsidize charity services provided. The disclosures required by ASU 2010-23 are effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, and must be applied retrospectively. Elmhurstis
assessing the impact of the implementation of ASU 2010-23 on the disclosures in its consolidated

financial statements.

In August 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-24, Health Care Entities (Topic 954) — Presentation of
Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries. ASU 2010-24 clarifies that a health care entity
should not net insurance recoveries against a related claim liability. Additionally, ASU 2010-24 provides
that the amount of the claims liability should be determined without consideration of insurance recoveries.
The provisions of ASU 2010-24 are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2010. Entities must apply the provisions of ASU 2010-24 by recording a
cumulative-effect adjustment to opening unrestricted net assets as of the beginning of the period of
adoption. Retrospective application of the provisions of ASU 2010-24 is permitted. Elmhurst is assessing
the impact of the implementation of ASU 2010-24 on its consolidated financial statements.

In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-07, Heaith Care Entities (Topic 954) — Presentation and
Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Alfowance for Doubtful Accounts
for Certain Health Care Entities. ASU 2011-07 requires health care entities that recognize significant
amounts of patient service revenue at the time the services are rendered even though they do not assess
the patient’s ability to pay, to change the presentation of their statement of operations by reclassifying the
provision for bad debts associated with patient service revenue from an operating expense to a deduction
from patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances and discounts). Additionally, ASU 2011-07
requires those health care entities to provide enhanced disclosure about their policies for recognizing
revenue and assessing bad debts, disclosures of patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances
and discounts) as well as qualitative and quantitative information about changes in the allowance for

doubtful accounts.

For public entities such as Elmhurst, the provisions of ASU 2011-07 are effective for fiscal years and
interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2011, with early adoption permitted. The
changes to the presentation of the provision for bad debis related to patient service revenue in the
statement of operations should be applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented. The disclosures
required by ASU 2011-07 should be provided for the period of adoption and subsequent reporting
periods. Eimhurst is assessing the impact of the implementation of ASU 2011-07 on its consolidated

financial statements.

Reclassifications: Certain prior year amounts in the notes to consolidated financial statements have
been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue in 2011 and 2010 was increased by the effect of favorable third-party payor
seftiements and related changes in estimates of approximately $845,000 and $129,000, respectively. A
summary of the basis of reimbursement with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare: The Hospital is paid for inpatient acute care and outpatient care services rendered to
Medicare program beneficiaries under prospectively determined rates per discharge (Prospective
Payment Systems). These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical,
diagnostic, and other factors. The Hospital’s classification of patients under Prospective Payment
Systems and the appropriateness of the patient's admissions are subject to validation reviews. The
Hospital is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at tentative rates with final settlement determined after
submission of annual reimbursement reports by the Hospital and audits by the Medicare fiscal
intermediary.

Elmhurst has filed formal appeals relating to the settlement of certain prior-year Medicare cost reports.
The outcome of such appeals cannot be determined at this time. Any resulting gains will be recognized in
the Consolidated Statements of Cperations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets when realized.

Medicaid: The Hospital is reimbursed at prospectively determined rates for each Medicaid inpatient
discharge. Outpatient services are reimbursed based on established fee screens. For inpatient acute
care services, payment rates vary according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical,
diagnostic, and other factors. The prospectively determined rates are not subject to retroactive
adjustment. Medicaid reimbursement may be subject to periodic adjustment, as well as to changes in
existing payment levels and rates, based on the amount of funding available to the Medicaid program.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. As a result, there is af least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by
a material amount in the near term. The Hospital believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of
potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such faws
and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as significant
regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

Medicaid Hospital Tax Assessment Program: The Hospital is part of the State of lllinois hospital tax
assessment program which is administered by the Illinocis Department of Public Aid. The laws and
regulations authorizing this Program have been extended through June 30, 2014. There is no assurance
of the continuation of this program after June 30, 2014. Under this program, the Hospital is to receive
annually approximately $8,678,000 from the State and pay annually a provider tax assessment
approximating $7,304,000. For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Hospital has recorded
$8,677,882 in assessment revenue (included in net patient service revenue) and $7,310,342 and
$7,304,160, respectively, in assessment expense (Medicaid tax). In the past, the State of lllinois has
significantly delayed certain payments refated to this program as well as collection of the related
assessment tax. As of June 30, 2011, the State of lllinois has been current in paymenis and collections
related to this program.

Blue Cross: Substantially all of the Hospital's reimbursement from Blue Cross is derived from three
managed care contracts, that provide cost-based reimbursement to the Hospital. The Hospital also
participates as a provider of health care services under another cost-based reimbursement agreement
with Blue Cross.

Managed care organizations: The Hospital has also entered into reimbursement agreements with
certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider

organizations. The basis of payment under these agreements includes discounts from established
charges, prospectively determined per diem and case §rqte§_, and cost-based m N
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3. Concentrations of Credit Risk

Elmhurst grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are insured
under third-party payor agreements. The mix of net patient accounts receivable from patients and third-

party payors as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, was as follows:

2011 2010

Medicare 19 % 30 %
Medicaid 6 6
Managed care (other than Blue Cross) 37 22
Blue Cross 10 13
Self-pay 13 16
Other 15 13

100 % 100 %
Note 4. Community Commitment and Charity Care

Community commitment represents Elmhurst's support of patients at reduced or no fee based upon
community need, the inability of the individual to pay in accordance with Elmhurst's policies or the
acceptance of payment from government payors at less than the cost of the services provided. The
estimated amounts of the community commitment provided for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,

are as follows:

2011 2010
Charity care (foregone charges) $ 32894370 $ 29,889,167
4,073,645 3,821,015

Self-pay patient discount
Unreimbursed cost (cost less reimbursement} of

treating Medicare and Medicaid patients 52,285,291 51,771,937
§ 89253306 $ 85482118

In addition, Elmhurst is involved in many community benefit activities. These activities are wide-ranging
and include health education, health screenings, support groups, insurance information resources,
seminars, and speakers. These activities are conducted free of charge or below the cost of providing
them. The estimated cost of these activities was $1,128,867 and $1,456,993 in fiscal 2011 and 2010,

respectively. .
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, consisted of the following:

2011 2010

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,783,278 § 63,434,716
Certificates of deposit 300,495 -
Equity securities:

U.s. 70,638,673 81,256,888

Non-U.S. 25,699,977 29,038,376

Global real estate 17,362,959 15,919,335
Fixed income securities:

U.S. government obligations 29,691,115 90,200,201

Corporate bonds 22,410,548 15,220,412

Mutual funds and trusts invested in U.S. fixed-income securities 46,025,258 49,181,351

Trust invested in global fixed-income securities 23,538,334 20,575,216
Hedge funds 34,860,762 40,589,569
Mutua! fund invested in TIPS and commodities 11,510,502 10,479,926
Real estate 975,000 975,000

$ 292,796,901

$ 416,870,990

Assets limited as to use and short-term investments are classified at June 30, 2011 and 2010, as follows:

Short-term investments $
Investments and assets limited as to use

2011 2010
1,111,519 1,108,683
291,685,382 415,762,307

$§ 292796901

$ 416,870,990

Other investments and assets limited as to use as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, consisted of the following:

Internally designated for medical education and other
health care services $

Temporarily restricted donor assets

Donor assets restricted into perpetuity

2011 2010
4,549,283 2,597,986
146,115 1,149,738
489,515 489,515
$ 5,184,913 4,237,239
ATTACHMENT 39
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)
Investment returns for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, consisted of the following:

2011 2010
Interest and dividend income $ 5465990 $ 4,950,825
Realized income {loss) - net 7,786,254 (7,785,593)
Investment income (loss) $ 13252244 % (2,834,768)

Investment returns on externally designated investments related to Elmhurst's debt were $763,490 and
$752,632 for fiscal 2011 and 2010, respectively. These amounts are presented as other operating
revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets and all
other investment returns are presented as nonoperating investment income {loss).

Note 6. Fair Value Disclosures

Fair value measurements: Guidance provided by the FASB defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. In determining fair value, ElImhurst uses various methods including market,
income and cost approaches. Based on these approaches, EImhurst often utilizes certain assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or
the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable,
market corroborated, or generally unobservable inputs. Elmhurst utilizes valuation technigues that
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the
observability of the inputs used in the valuation techniques Elmhurst is required to provide the following
information according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the guality and reliabiiity
of the information used to determine fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be
classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1. Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.

Level 2. Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets. Valuations
are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3. Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar technigues, and not based on
market exchange, dealer, or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain
assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value
measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its

entirety.

For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the application of valuation techniques applied to similar
assets and liabilities has been consistent. The following is a description of the valuation methodologies

used for instruments measured at fair value:

(/7 g’ ATTACHMENT 39
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6. Fair Value Disclosures (Continued)

investment Securities

The fair value of investment securities is the market value based on quoted market prices, when
available, or market prices provided by recognized broker dealers. |f listed prices or quotes are not
available, fair value is based upon externally developed models that use unobservable inputs due to the
limited market activity of the instrument.

Alternative Investments

The fair value of alternative investments (hedge funds) is $34,860,762 and $40,589,569 at June 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively. Of these amounts, $17,652,139 and $20,511,050 was invested in a fund of
hedge funds with quarterly liquidity requiring 95 days notice for redemption and $17,208,623 and
$20,078,519 was invested in a fund of hedge funds with quarterly liquidity requiring 60 days notice for
redemption as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Alternative investments with no market activity
are valued using the market values of the underlying investments held by the investment fund.
Management's estimate of the fair value of hedge funds and equities held in commingled funds are based
on information provided by the fund managers or general partners, which in turn is based on the most
recent information available t¢ the fund manager for the underlying invesiments.

In determining the appropriate levels, Elmhurst performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities
that are subject to the FASB-issued guidance. At each reporting period, all assets and liabilities for which
the fair value measurement is based on significant unobservable inputs are classified as Level 3.

Inferest Rate Swaps

Currently, Elmhurst uses interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risks. The valuation of these
instruments is determined by utilizing widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash
flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each interest rate swap. This analysis refiects the contractual
terms of the interest rate swap, including the period to maturity and uses observable market-based inputs,

including LIBOR rate curves.

Liability Derivatives

2011 2010
Balance Balance
Sheet Fair Sheet Fair
Location Value Location Value
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments*
Interest rate contracts Other liabilities $ 13,088,685 Other fiabilities $ 17,960,634
Total derivatives % 13.088.685 $ 17,960,634

* Note 8 provides additional information on Elmhurst's purpose for entering into derivatives.

4 g ATTACHMENT 39
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6. Fair Value Disclosures (Continued)

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Excess
of Revenue over Expenses

Location of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Excess
of Revenue over Expenses

2011 2010
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments:
Interest rate contracts Nonoperating income (expense) § 5,702,998 $ (820,231)

Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The table below presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis, as of June 30, 2011 and 2010.

June 30, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash $ 9783278 § - 3 - $ 9,783,278
Certificates of deposit - 300,495 - 300,495
Equity securities: -
U.S. 15,657,019 54,981,654 - 70,638,673
Non-U.S. 168,904 25,631,073 - 25,699,977
Global real estate 17,362,959 - - 17,362,959
Fixed income securities:
U.S. government and government
agency obligations 29,691,115 - - 29,691,115
Corporate bonds 13,557,416 8,863,132 - 22,410,548
Mutual funds and trusts invested
in U.S. fixed-income securities 15,815,030 30,210,228 - 46,025,258
Trust invested in global fixed-
income securities - 23,538,334 - 23,538,334
Hedge funds - 34,860,762 - 34,860,762
Mutual fund invested in TIPS and
commodities 11,510,502 - - 11,510,502
Real estate - 975,000 - 975,000
Total investments $ 113,546,223 $179250.678 % - $ 29_2,_796,901
Interest rate swaps $ - $ (13,088,685) § - $ (13,088,685)
ATTACHMENT 39
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6. Fair Value Disclosures (Continued)
June 30, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash $ 63434716 § - $ - $ 63,434,716
Equity securities: -
us. 3,261,191 77,995,697 - 81,256,888
Non-U.S. 422773 28,615,603 - 29,038,376
Globhal real estate 15,919,335 - - 15,919,335
Fixed income securities:
U.S. government and government
agency obligations 90,200,201 - 90,200,201
Corporate bonds 6,753,387 8,467,025 - 15,220,412
Mutual funds and trusts invested
in U.S. fixed-income securities 16,800,511 32,380,840 - 49,181,351
Trust invested in global fixed-
income securities - 20,575,216 - 20,575,216
Hedge funds - 40,589,569 - 40,589,569
Mutual fund invested in TIPS and
commodities 10,479,926 - - 10,479,926
Real estate 975,000 - 975,000

Total investments

Interest rate swaps

$ 207,272,040

$ 209,598,950 § -

$ 416,870,990

$ -

$ (17,960,634) %

$ (17,960,634)

Fair value of financial instruments: The following methods and assumptions were used by Elmhurst to
estimate the fair value of other financial instruments not described above:

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts
payable, accrued expenses and amounts due to or from third-party payors are reasonable estimates of
their fair value due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments.

The estimated fair value of long-term debt, based on quoted market prices for the same or similar issues,
was approximately $9,132,000 and $5,889,000 less than its carrying value at June 30, 2011 and 2010,

respectively.

/Z/
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Eimhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 7. Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Land, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation, at June 30, 2011 and
2010, as follows:

2011 2010

Land and land improvements $ 103,369,601 $ 24,214,552
Buildings 571,667,791 190,409,236
Equipment 234,735,258 160,370,210
Construction in progress 3,612,826 325,826,477
Land held for future use 954,860 51,199,618

914,340,336 752,020,093
Less accumulated depreciation {296,586,295) (264,053,910)

$ 617,754,041 _$ 487,966,183

In July 2004, the Board of Trustees of Eimhurst announced its decision to initiate a planning process to
develop a new, integrated health care campus on 32 acres of land acquired in southern Elmhurst.
Construction began in the spring of 2008 and was completed in June 2011. The new hospital opened in
June 2011. The campus includes a replacement hospital and additional physician offices. A plan is being
developed to determine the reuse of the current hospital campus and facilities. It is expected that some
level of health care services will continue to be provided there. The Hospita! does not believe the old
hospital campus is impaired, however, it has begun to reassess the depreciable lives associated with the
buildings and equipment on the current hospital campus. The net book value of the fixed assets at the
old hospital campus was $5,332,305 and $9,449,549 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Net
interest costs capitalized during the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, were $9,198,074 and
$7.602,526, respectively. The accumulated capitalized interest costs as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, were

$17,401,539 and $8,203,465, respectively.
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Eimhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8.
Long-term debt at June 30, 2011 and 2010, consists of the following:

Long-Term Debt

5.00% to 6.25% secured revenue refunding bonds, dated
December 15, 2002 (Series 2002D), due in varying annual
principal installments through January 1, 2028

Variable rate direct note obligation Series 1985C and 1885D
(0.10% and 0.25% at June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively), maturing on December 15, 2012

Variable rate direct note obligation Series 2004A
(0.25% and 0.55% at June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively), maturing on January 1, 2024

Secured revenue bonds Series 2008A (4.5% to 5.625%),
dated May 15, 2008, due in varying annual principal
instaliments through January 1, 2037

Variable rate demand revenue bonds, Series 2008B
(0.04% and 0.14% at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively),
maturing on January 1, 2048

Variable rate demand revenue bonds, Series 2008C
(0.10% and 0.39% at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively),
maturing on January 1, 2048

Variable rate demand revenue bonds, Series 20080
(0.06% and 0.19% at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively),
maturing on January 1, 2048

Variable rate demand revenue bonds, Series 2008E
(0.24% and 0.39% at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively),
maturing on January 1, 2048

Other long-term borrowings

Less current maturities of long-term debt

Long-term debt less current maturities

2011

2010

$ 126,688,386

& 128,739,270

8,533,300 11,733,302
6,482,000 6,482,000
120,344,869 120,178,531
100,000,000 100,000,000
75,000,000 75,000,000
50,000,000 50,000,000
25,000,000 25,000,000
143,700 143,700
512,192,265 517,276,803
{5,330,004) (5,225,004)

$ 506,862,261

$ 512,051,799

In August 2008, EImhurst entered into a $12,000,000 loan through the Illinois Facilities Authority's Pooled
Financing Program related to the Series 1985C and 1985D Project Loan Agreements. Proceeds from the
loan were used to reimburse Eimhurst for routine capital expenditures with tax-exempt uses.

In December 2006, Elmhurst issued $47,000,000 variable rate direct note obligation bonds, Series
2006E. The proceeds were used to establish a project fund to reimburse Elmhurst for routine capital

purchases.

/21
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

In May 2008, Eimhurst issued $124,820,000 fixed-rate revenue bonds (Series 2008A}. The praceeds
were used to establish a Project Fund {fo reimburse Eimhurst for costs related to the construction of the
new hospital campus), establish a Capitalized Interest Fund (to pay the interest costs during
construction}, and to establish a Debt Service Reserve Fund.

In May 2008, Elmhurst also issued $250,000,000 variable rate revenue bonds (Series 20088 through E).
A portion of the proceeds were used to redeem the Series 2006E Direct Note Bonds. The remainder of
the proceeds were used to establish Project Funds (to reimburse Eimhurst for cost related to the
construction of the new hospital campus) and Capitalized Interest Funds (to pay the interest costs during
construction). The bonds are puttable on demand by the bondhalders. Elmhurst uses a remarketing agent
to resell any tendered bonds to new investors. Eimhurst has obtained an irrevocable letter of credit to
secure repayment of the bond financing, and to provide short-term liquidity in the event bonds are put to
Elmhurst and are not able to be immediately remarketed. If the letter of credit were to be drawn upon as a
result of failed efforts to remarket any tendered bonds, amounts drawn would be repayable in quarterly
installments over a 36-month period commencing 367 days after being drawn, or sooner if the bonds are
subsequently remarketed to new investors.

The maturities and annual sinking fund requirements for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2012 through
2016, on the outstanding long-term debt are as follows, assuming remarketing of variable rate unsecured
demand revenue bonds: 2012 - $5,330,004; 2013 - $7,578,294; 2014 - $4,585,000; 2015 - $4,975,000,
2016 - $5,175,000 and thereafter - $490,840,700. As described above, if variable rate unsecured demand
revenue bonds fail to remarket, Elmhurst would have to make accelerated debt repayments.

The revenue bonds are collateralized by substantially all assets of Elmhurst. The provisions of the
indenture require the Obligated Group (comprised of ElImhurst Memorial Hospital, Efmhurst Memorial
Healthcare, and Elmhurst Memorial Home Health) to maintain certain financial covenants, including a
minimum annual debt service coverage level, and a minimum number of days cash an hand.

In 1998, Elmhurst established a program to actively manage its interest cost. The program seeks to
achieve the lowest interest cost consistent with an acceptable level of risk given varying interest rate
environments. Elmhurst has established a long-term targeted mix of 50% fixed and 50% variable interest
rate exposure. Long-term tax-exempt and taxable financings form the base for the program. These
financings are necessarily timed to coincide with the periodic acquisition of qualified assets. Based upon
the interest rate environment at the time of such financings, fixed or variable rate modes of financing are
utilized. Derivatives (interest rate swaps) are used to achieve the targeted mix when underlying financings
do not. Market conditions often limit the ability of the program to fully achieve its goals and consequently
swap terms (maturity, notional amounts, etc.} do not perfectly match the terms of the underlying debt.

During the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, Elmhurst had the following interest rate swap
agreements in place.

Floating Interest Rate Agreement ("Basis Swap") — Elmhurst entered a Basis Swap in May 2002 to lower
total interest cost by earning income from spreads between taxable and tax-exempt interest rates.
Eimhurst pays the SIFMA floating rate index and receives 76.21% of one-month LIBOR on a $50,600,000
notional amount, extending over a 20-year period. The Basis Swap does not qualify for hedge accounting.
Gains and losses are recorded as Nonoperating Income (Expense) in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets.

ATTACHMENT 39
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Eimhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Fixed Receiver Interest Rate Swap Agreement ("Fixed Receiver"} — Elmhurst entered this swap in August
2003 to increase its exposure to floating interest rate debt after its 2002D fixed-rate refinancing resulted in
a higher fixed interest rate exposure. Elmhurst pays the SIFMA floating rate index and receives a fixed
rate of 4.64% on a notional amount of $40,000,000. This agreement also includes a counterparty
termination option effective August 2011 and anytime thereafter. The swap extends over a 27-year period
from its August 2003 execution date. The long-term Fixed Receiver does not qualify for hedge
accounting. Gains and losses are recorded as Nonoperating Income (Expense) in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets.

2008 Fixed Payer Interest Rate Swap Agreement ("2008 Fixed Payer") ~ Elmhurst entered this swap
strategy with three separate counterparties in July 2005 to hedge its fixed interest rate exposure for the
planned 2008 bond issue related to the new facility. While terms with the three counterparties differ
slightly, the following express the aggregate terms of the entire strategy. The exchange of payments was
not effective until January 2008 to coincide with the planned bond issue. Elmhurst pays a fixed rate of
4.135% in exchange for the SIFMA floating rate index on a notional amount of $120,000,000 for 30 years.
The term of the swap is matched to the expected life and amortization on 50% of the 2008 bonds. The
2008 Fixed Payer Swap was designated for hedge accounting through June 30, 2008. Gains and losses
through June 30, 2008, were recorded as Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets. On July 1, 2008, Elmhurst
dedesignated the hedge. Gains and losses on the hedging instrument arising subsequent to the date of
dedesignation are recorded as components of Nonoperating Income, and gains or losses previously
recorded as components of Other Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets are amortized to Nonoperating
Income when the previously hedged interest expense is recognized.

Fixed Spread Floating Interest Rate Agreements ("Fixed Spread Basis Swaps®) — Elmhurst entered this
swap strategy with three separate counterparties in July 2005 with the objective of reducing total interest
cost by earning income from spreads between taxable and tax-exempt interest rates. Effective January
2008, Elmhurst began paying the SIFMA floating rate index and receive 67% of one-month LIBOR, plus
0.76% on a $120,000,000 notional amount, extending over a 30-year period. In April 2008, Elmhurst
entered into another Fixed Spread Basis Swap with two counterparties. Elmhurst pays the SIFMA floating
rate index and receives 61.3% of one-month LIBOR, plus a fixed spread of 0.73% on a $140,000,000
notional amount over a 30-year period. The Fixed Spread Basis Swaps do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Gains and losses are recorded as Nonoperating Income (Expense}) in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets.

Constant Matunity Swaps — Elmhurst entered this swap strategy with two counterparties in June 2006 with
the objective of reducing total interest cost by earning income from spreads between one-month and five-
year interest rates. Under the agreements with both counterparties, payments began in January 2007,
Elmhurst pays 67% of one-month LIBOR in exchange for 61.3% of five-year LIBOR on $60,000,000 or
50% of the LIBOR exposure of the Fixed Spread Basis Swap until 2032. In addition, Elmhurst had paid
76.21% of one-month LIBOR in exchange for 76.21% of five-year LIBOR - 0.35% on $25,000,000 or 50%
its LIBOR exposure on the basis swap. This swap was terminated during fiscal year 2011, resulting in a
gain of $1,482,000 that was recorded in cash settlements on interest rate swaps under non-operating
income (expense). The remaining Constant Maturity Swap is not designated for hedge accounting. Gains
and losses are recorded as Nonoperating Income (Expenses) in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets.

Elmhurst has provisions in its swap agreements that require the posting of collateral when the
counterparty mark-to-market valuation results in a liability greater than $5,000,000. At June 30, 2011 and
2010, Elmhurst has posted $3,071,351 and $3,784,789, respectively, of collateral, in the form of cash and
investments, with the counterparties. Amounts posted as collateral are reported on the Consolidated

Balance Sheets under Prepaid expenses, interest receivable, and other.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 9. Operating Leases

The Hospital has operating leases for specific property, plant, and equipment.

Rent paid and recorded under operating leases was $3,248,457 and $3,497,062 for the years ended
June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. '

The future minimum lease commitments under these operating leases as of June 30, 2011, are as
follows:

Years ending June 30:

2012 $ 2,414,816
2013 1,865,982
2014 1,578,866
2015 556,360

$ 6,416,024

Note 10. Employee Retirement Plans

Elmhurst has a noncontributory retirement plan which qualifies as a pension plan under ASC Topic 715,
Compensation — Retirement Benefits. The plan covers substantially all full-time employees. Itis

Elmhurst's policy to make contributions in amounts calculated by the actuarial consultant to adequately
fund benefit programs and meet ERISA requirements, In addition, Elmhurst also maintains an unfunded
noncontributory, supplemental defined benefit retirement plan (SERP) for certain executive employees.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 10.

Employee Retirement Plans (Continued)

Information regarding the benefit obligations and assets of the pension plan and SERP as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, is as follows:

2011 2010
Pension SERP Pension SERP
Accumulated benefit obligation 160,040,495 1,732,378 3 154,245 330 5,794,141
Projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation,
beginning of year 479,632,937 5,815,475 $ 136,791,763 5,575,832
Service cost 6,997,084 118,288 4,849,007 144,338
Interest cost 9,726,499 289,011 9,078,712 365,905
Plan changes - - -
Actuarial (gains) losses (9,865,127} (168,933) 33,541,427 132,186
Benefits paid (5,105,449) {4,321,463) (4,627,972) (402,786)
Projected benefit obligation,
end of year 181,385,944 1,732,378 179,632,937 5,815,475
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets,
beginning of year 138,716,172 - 120,736,007 -
Actual return (loss) on plan
assets 26,852,310 - 15,888,137 -
Contributions 5,500,000 4,321,463 6,720,000 402,786
Benefits paid (5,105,449) (4,321,463) (4,627,972) {402,786)
Fair value of plan assets,
end of year 165,963,033 - 138,716,172 -
Funded status, end of year 15,422 911 1,732,378 3 40,916,765 5,815,475

The unfunded pension liability is reported as Accrued Pension on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, $1,382,378 and $5,582,696, respectively, of the unfunded
SERP liability is included in Other Liabilities and $350,000 and $232,780, respectively, is included in
Accrued Payroll and Other Liabilities on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Plan items not yet recognized as a component of periodic pension expense, but included as a separate
component of unrestricted net assets at June 30, 2011 and 2010, are as follows:

2011 2010
Pension SERP Pension SERP
Unrecognized prior service cost g 323,159 $ 323,130 $ 491581 % 483,529
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 54,557,934 69,134 81,202,473 500,649
S 54,881,093 § 392,264 3 81694054 % 984,178
ATTACHMENT 39
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 10. Employee Retirement Plans {Contihued)

Pension related changes other than net periodic pension cost that have been included as a reduction of
unrestricted net assets consist of:

| 2011 2010
Pension SERP Pension SERP
I Net actuarial {gain) loss arising
during the period $ (22,744,701) % (168,933) $ 31,312688 § 132,186
Prior service cost amortized
during the period (168,422) (160,399) {168,422} {163,626)
Net actuarial loss amortized
during the period {3,899,838) (262,582) - -
§ _ (26812961) % (591,814) b 31144266 3 (31,440)
20141 2010
Pension SERP Pension SERP
Assumptions:
Discount rate used to determine
benefit obligation 5.75 % 575 % 5.50 % 5.50 %
Discount rate used to determine
net periodic benefit cost 5.50 % 5.50 % 6.75 % 6.75 %
Rate of increase in
compensation levels 5.00 % 5.00 % 5.00 % 5.00 %
Expected long-term rate of
return on assets 8.00 % NfA B.50 % N/A

The estimated net actuarial loss and prior service cost that will be amortized as a component of net
periodic benefit cost during fiscal 2012 are $3,311,441 and $168,422, respectively, for the pension plan.
The estimated prior service cost that will be amortized as a component of net periodic benefit costs during
fiscal 2012 is $100,898 for the SERP.

Elmhurst expects to contribute $6,000,000 to the Plan during fiscal 2012, and $350,000 to the SERP
during fiscal 2012.

The allocation of pension plan assets at June 30, 2011 and 2010, is as follows:

Target 2011 2010
Equity securities 55 9, 55 % 52 ¢,
Fixed-income securities 25 31 32
Alternative investments 20 14 16
Total 100 % 100 % 100 %

ATTACHMENT 39




Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 10. Employee Retirement Plans (Continued)

The pension fund is managed in accordance with the policies established by the Investment Committee of
the Board (the "Investment Commitiee"). The investment policy includes specific guidelines for quality,
asset concentration, asset mix, asset allocations, and performance expectations. The pension fund
investment allocations are periodically reviewed for compliance with the pension investment policy by the
Investment Committee.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical and projected rates of return
for current and planned asset categories in the Plan’s investment porifolio. Assumed projected rates of
return for each asset category are selected after analyzing historical experience and future expectations
of the returns and volatility for assets of that category using benchmark rates. Based on the target asset
allocation among the asset categories, the overall expected rate of return for the portfolio is developed
and adjusted for historical and expected experience of active portfolio management results compared to
benchmark returns and for the effect of expenses paid from Plan assets.

Expected future benefit payments for the plan years ending December 31 are as follows:

Pension SERP
2012 $ 6,215000 $ 350,000
2013 6,939,000 -
2014 7,692,000 -
2015 8,502,000 1,890,000
2016 9,333,000 -
2017-2021 58,923,000 1,170,000

Net periodic benefit cost for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, includes the following components:

2011 2010
Pension SERP Pension SERP

Service cost - benefits earned

during the year $ 6,897,084 3§ 118,287 $ 4849007 § 144,338
Interest cost on projected benefit

obligation 9,726,499 289,011 9,078,712 365,906
Expected return on plan assets (13,972,736) - {(13,659,398) -
Amortization of prior service cost 168,422 160,399 168,422 163,626
Amortization of actuarial loss 3,899,838 - - -
Settlement expense - 262 582 - -

$ 6,819,107 % 830,279 $ 436,743 & 673,870

Elmhurst also maintains contributory savings plans (the "Savings Plans") covering substantially all
employees of Elmhurst. Participants may make voluntary contributions to the Savings Plans, which are
partially matched by Elmhurst. For each dollar of participant contribution, Elmhurst matches 50% of the
first 3% of pay and 25% of the second 3% of pay. Certain matching benefits were suspended in 2010.
Additional contributions may be made by Elmhurst at its discretion. Costs of the Savings Plans charged
to salaries and benefits totaled $105,299 and $172,505 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,

respectively.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 10.

Employee Retirement Plans (Continued)

The tables below presents the balances of pension assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, as

of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

June 30, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash $ 4,145,802 - - $ 4,145,802
Mutual funds invested in U.S. fixed-

income securities 24,017,936 6,032,706 - 30,050,642
Trust invested in global fixed-

income securities - 16,793,957 - 16,793,957
Equity securities:

u.s. 13,800,483 49,266,073 - 63,066,556

Non-U.S. - 20,690,515 - 20,690,515

Global real estate 8,123,552 - - 8,123,552
Hedge funds - 23,082,009 - 23,092,009
Total investments $ 50087773 $ 115875260 - $ 165,863,033

June 30, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash $ 5,666,761 - - $ 5,666,761
Mutual funds invested in U.S. fixed-

income securities 24,624,558 - - 24,624,558
Trust invested in global fixed-

income securities - 14,679,854 - 14,679,854
Equity securities:

u.s. - 46,986,032 - 46,986,032

Non-U.S. - 18,995,719 - 18,995,719

Global real estate 6,139,178 - - 6,139,178
Hedge funds - 21,624,070 - 21,624,070
Total investments $ 36,430,497 3 102,285,675 - $ 138,716,172
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Caonsolidated Financial Statements

Note 11. Professiona! and General Liabilities Insurance

Elmhurst is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of operations that, in the opinion of
management, will be resolved without a material impact on the Hospital's financial position. Substantially,
all claims made prior to July 1, 1979, are covered by commercial insurance. On July 1, 1979, the Hospital
entered into a contractual agreement with the Chicago Hospital Risk Pooling Program (CHRPP) that,
through its risk-sharing provisions, provided the Hospital with insurance coverage for professional and
general liability claims. CHRPP is a multi-hospital trust formed pursuant to the provisions of the Winois
Religious and Charitable Risk Pooling Act. As a self-insurance administrator, CHRPP enables risk-
sharing among lllinois hospitals. Beneficiary hospitals are obligated to make additional contributions, if
necessary, to maintain the trust assets at a level adequate to support anticipated disbursements, as
defined in the trust agreement. Substantially all claims made between July 1, 1979 and December 1,
2005, are covered by CHRPP. For the period July 1, 1979 to December 31, 2002, CHRPP coverage was
on the occurrence-basis. Effective January 1, 2003, CHRPP changed its coverage from occurrence-basis

to claims-made.

In June 2010, CHRPP notified its current and former members that it had resolved to discontinue the
issuance of hospital professional and comprehensive general liability coverage and commence a
voluntary "run-off” of its claim portfolio effective January 1, 2011.

CHRPP engaged the services of an independent consultant for actuarial valuations of self-insured
funding requirements and has designated attorneys to handle professional and general liability claims.
The Hospital has established its risk management program and claims-handling procedures in
accordance with guidelines issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services. The
self-insurance funding, which is expensed when amounts are funded into the self-insurance trust, was
recommended and certified by an independent actuarial firm. As stated above, the Hospital's insurance
premiums are subject to retrospective adjustments. Management does not believe any retrospective
adjustments would be material.

Since 2005, the Hospital has a self-insured retention program in which the Hospital retains the risk for all
claims with individual values under $3,000,000. The Hospital has obtained insurance coverage on a
claims-made basis for amounts exceeding $3,000,000 up to $33,000,000. The Hospital has engaged an
independent actuary to determine the estimated cost of the retained risk and has recorded expense in
accordance with the actuary's estimate. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Hospital recorded a liability,
discounted at 4.50% in 2011 and 4.75% in 2010 of $20,327,428 and $20,309,810, respectively, for
incurred but not reported claims arising under both its own self-insurance program and the CHRPP
program. The effect of discounting the liability is approximately $4,446,000 and $5,118,000, respectively,
at June 30, 2011 and 2010. This liability consists of $2,215,654 and $1,624,586 reported in Accounts
Payable at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and $18,111,774 and $18,685,224 reported in Other
Liabilities at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Hospital
has elected to not establish a corresponding self-insured trust asset to fund this liability as of June 30,
2011, because management believes that it has enough liquidity in its cash, short-term investments, and
the capital reserve fund.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 12. Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, are available for the following

purposes:
2011 2010

Pledges restricted to benefit future periods $ 4673164 % 5665477

Capital purchases - 154,132

Medical education 63,000 63,000

Other health care programs 83,135 244,664

$ 4819209 § 6127273

Permanently restricted net assets of $489,515 at June 30, 2011 and 2010, are investments to be held in

perpetuity, the income from which is expendable for medical education.

During 2011 and 2010, net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses, satisfying
the restricted purposes of medical education, and other health care programs amounting to $2,020,288
and $1,883,645, respectively, and were recorded as Other Revenue in the accompanying Consolidated

Statements of Operations and Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets.

The expected timing of pledge payments and value of pledges receivable recorded as of June 30, 2011,

are as follows:

Years ending June 30:

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
Thereafter

Less - present value discounts

Less - allowance for uncoliectible pledges

Pledges receivable, net

Less current portion included in prepaid expense, interest
receivable, and other

Noncurrent portion included in prepaid pension,
deferred financing costs, and other

$

1,015,750
801,191
666,000
574,500
510,998

1,499,020

5,067,459
(340,941)
(53,334)

4,673,184

(1,015,750)

$

3,657,434
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13. Functional Expenses

Elmhurst provides comprehensive quality health care services to the residents of eastern Du Page and
western Cook counties. Expenses related to these functions at June 30, 2011 and 2010, are as follows:

2011 2010
Health care services $ 319,069,233 $ 274,969,039
General and administrative 81,504,133 79,028,986
Fundraising 1,368,796 1,305,668

$ 401,942.162 3 355303,693

Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies

Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement: The Governor of lllinois recently signed into law the budget for
the State’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, which cuts Medicaid funding to hospitals in the upcoming
year. The Medicaid cuts are expected to delay Medicaid payments into the State’s fiscal year 2013 to cut
spending in the upcoming year. For non-expedited hospitals, payments based on claims will be held for
the first 160 days of the State fiscal year, whereas, for expedited hospitals 1 or 2 payments wili be made
in August based on their claims. Although the budget is signed, the Medicaid funding cut may be reversed
by a majority vote when the General Assembly meets in October 2011 for the annual Veto Session. In
addition to delayed Medicaid payments, deep cuts to both the Medicare and Medicaid programs are
under consideration by the U.S. Congress as it looks to cut federal spending. Such cuts in Medicaid and
Medicare reimbursement, if enacted, could have a significant adverse effect on the Corporation’s financial
statements.

Litigation: Elmhurst is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business.
Although the outcome of the lawsuits cannot be determined with certainty, management believes the
ultimate disposition of such matters will not have a material effect on Elmhurst's consolidated financial

statements.

Reguiatory investigation: The U.S. Department of Justice, other federal agencies and the linois
Department of Public Aid routinely conduct regulatory investigations and compliance audits of health care
providers. The Hospital is subject to these regulatory efforts. Management is currently unaware of any
regulatory matters which may have a material effect on Eimhurst’s financial position or results from
operations.

Regulatory environment including fraud and abuse matters: The health care industry is subject to
numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and locat governments. These laws and regulations
include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such as licensure, accreditation, government health
care program participation requirements, reimbursement for patient services, and Medicare and Medicaid
fraud and abuse. Government activity continues with respect to investigations and allegations concerning
possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers. Violations of
these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from government health care programs together with
the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services
previously billed. Management believes that the Hospital is in compliance with fraud and abuse, as well
as other applicable government laws and regulations. While no regulatory inquiries have been made,
compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation,
as well as regulatory actions unknown or asserted at this time.
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Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies {Continued}

CMS Recovery Audit Contractor Program: Congress passed the Medicare Modernization Actin 2003,
which among other things established a three-year demonstration of the Medicare Recovery Audit
Contractor (RAC) program. The RAC identified and corrected a significant amount of improper
overpayments to providers. In 2006, Congress passed the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 which
authorized the expansion of the RAC program to all 50 states by 2010. CMS implemented the RAC
program in lllinois in 2010. Management does not believe that RAC audits will have a material effect on
the Corporation's results of operations or cash flows. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Hospital recorded a
reserve for estimated amounts that will be repaid under the RAC program based on the Hospital's RAC
program experience to date.

Property tax-exemption: On August 16, 2011, the lllinois Department of Revenue (IDOR) issued initial
rulings denying the property tax-exemption applications of three lllinois not-for-profit hospitals. Because
the IDOR did not provide explanations for its initial rulings in these cases, it is not known what criteria and
standards the IDOR used in concluding not to grant the property tax-exemption. Although these initial
rulings may be appealed, the outcome of such appeals, and the applicability of these initial rulings, or
subsequent rulings on the property tax-exemption applications of other lllinois not-for-profit hospitals,
cannot be determined with certainty.

Elmhurst has filed a property tax-exemption application for a portion of the Center for Health, and awaits
a decision from the IDOR. As of June 30, 2011, Elmhurst has recorded a refund receivable of
approximately $1,100,000 for a portion of property taxes paid relating to the Center for Health for tax
years 2008, 2009 and 2010. Management continues to believe that the application wilt be approved and
that the related property taxes will be refunded.

Note 15. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events: Eimhurst has evaluated subseguent events for potential recognition and/or
disclosure through September 23, 2011, the date the consolidated financial statements were issued.
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McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

= McGladrey

Independent Auditor's Report on the Supplementary Information

To the Board of Truslees of
Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
Elmhurst, Hlinois

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole. The consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional
analysis of the basic consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position and
results of operations of the individual companies. The consclidating information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements

taken as a whole.
%&%@ ///{,%pc/ P

Chicago, lllinois
September 23, 2011
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ﬁ Eimhurst Memorial

Ha
VW Healthicare

November 14, 2011

TO: MSRB EMMA Senvices and Bondholders requesting direct disclosure
FROM: James F. Doyle, Senior Vice President and CFO

SUBJECT: Quarterly Disclosure for lllinois Health Facilities Authority
Revenue Bonds: Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare

Enclosed is Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare’s quarterly disclosure report for the three-month period ended September 30,

2011, This report includes Management's Discussion, Utilization Statistics and Interim Financial Statements.

JFD/Mhz

encl,
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ELMHURST MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE
Management's Discussion of Operations
Results for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2011

(Note: all comparative comments are with regard to the prior fiscal year unless otherwise noted)

Utilization Statistics

The first quarter of FY2012 is the first full quarter of operations at the new main campus. The New main campus opened
on June 25, 2011. On June 25t all acute care operations, along with most outpatient diagnostic and treatment services
moved from the Berteau Campus to the new Brush Hill campus approximately 3 mites south of the Berteau campus.

The 38 bed skilled nursing unit, the 18 bed behavioral health unit and OP radiation oncology services along with an
immediate care center are the main services now located on the Berteau Campus.

Total discharges were essentially flat compared to same period prior year. Inpatient adult days were up 3.2% for the first
quarter. Medicare patient acuity as measured by the case mix index was down 3.1% compared to last fiscal year, largely
due to the decrease in IP surgeries versus the same period prior year. Discharges, days, length of stay and occupancy
rates all exciude observation patients.

Skilled Nursing (SNF) discharges were down 3.2% for the first quarter. SNF days, which is a better indicator of revenue,
was also down by 14.4% for the first quarter. This drop is largely due to the initiat operational changes in the first several
weeks following the move of the acute care business to the new main campus.

Emergency Room visits were down 5.0% for the first quarter. Immediate Care visits were up by 8%. Note that in the first
several weeks post move a number of lower acuity patients presented to the Berteau campus thinking the ER was still
located there, these patients were treated in the immediate care center now located at the Berteau Campus. The
Physician Practice Division office visits were up 10.6% for the first quarter.

Hospital Ambulatory Surgery cases were down 4.6% for the first quarter. The Elmhurst Outpatient Surgery Center case
volume increased by 3.3% for the first quarter. Inpatient surgical cases were also down 1.6% for the first quarter.

Home Health admissions were up 6.4% for the first quarter. The number of Home Health visits- an indicator of
expenses- was also up by 7.2%. Hospice covered days were also up 4.8% for the first quarter.

Payer Mix

Net Revenue for the year for managed care payers was up 2% reflecting the growth in OP services versus the flat
volumes in IP services as well as some favorable rate changes in certain managed care contracts in FY11.

Financial Statements

Balance Sheet;

The System's 90-day rolling average number of days in net AR was 65 days on September 30th. The increase in AR is
due to the implementation of provider based billing in January of 2011, which resulted in about some significant OP
billing delays. The decrease in Trustee Held Assets and the Reserve for Capital Replacement are due the PP&E
expenditures made during the year on the replacement hospital which opaned June 25" and the unrealized losses
experienced during the first quarter. The growth in deferred expenses and other assets is largely due to required
collateral postings on EMHC’s SWAP portfolio.
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ELMHURST MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE, Management's Discussion of Operations continued

Income Statement;

Total revenue increased 6.3% due in large part to growth in OP and physician office activity.. Salaries and Benefits
expense increased 8.8% over prior year due to the increase in employees needed to operate two inpatient campus
locations and 2.8% in average merit increases. interest expense is increased over prior year as the project is now
complete and interest is now longer being capitalized. Depreciation increased by $7 million over prior year due to the

New Replacement Hospital.

Cash Flow

Draws from the capital reserve were used in the first quarter to pay accrued construction invoices and fund the increase
in AR and to post nearty $13 million in collateral on the SWAP portfolio.

Other

Northwestern Memorial Healthcars and EMHC have executed a non-disclosure agreement that provides for a period of
exclusive discussions regarding a potential affiliation. EMHC cannot predict whether these discussions will result in an
agreement between the two organizations. Any definitive agreement would be subject to both parties’ governing bodies

and applicable regulatory approvals.
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ELMHURST MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE
System Balance Sheet

Sep-11 Sep-10 $ change % change
Assets
Cash and Short Term Investments $ 10274 $ 8621 1,653 19.2%
Patient Accts Receivable Net 68,027 53574 14 453 27.0%
Inventories 7,538 5,405 2,133 39.5%
Prepaid Exp's & Other Rec.,Net 6,609 5773 836 14.5%
Total Current Assets 92,448 73,372 19,076 26.0%
Resenved for Capital Replacement 192,076 358,190 (166,114) ABA4%
Trustee Held Assets & Other investments 31,225 42,261 (11,036) -26.1%
Total Investments 223,301 400,452 (177,151) -44.9%
Plant, Property and Equipment 557,166 454,630 102,536 226%
Deferred Expenses & Other Assets 73,658 65,714 7,944 12.1%
Total Assets $ 946,573 $ 994,169 (47,596) 48%
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Current Porfion Long Term Debt $ 5330 $ 5225 105 2.0%
Accounts Payable 36,739 43770 (7.031) -16.1%
Accrued Expenses 44235 28497 15,738 55.2%
Amounts Due T hird Party Payers and Credit
Balances 20,540 37,648 (17,108) -45.4%
Total Current Liabilities 106,844 115,140 (8,296) 7.2%
Bonds Payable 505,689 511,141 (5.452) A1%
Other Long Temm Liabilities 50,018 62,059 (12,041 19.4%
Total Liabiliies 662,551 688,340 (25,789) 3.7%
Net Assets 284,022 305,829 (21,807) 7.1%
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 946573 § 994,169 (47,596) -4.8%

Unaudited interim statements — prior periods may have been restated for comparison purposes
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ELMHURST MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE
Statement of System Cash Flows

Sep-11 Sep-10 $change  %change
Cash Flow from Operating Activies
Operating Income/(Loss) (8,151) 151 (8,302)  -5498.0%
Net Financing Income/{Loss) {42,327 19,935 (62,262) -312.3%
Adjust for Non-Cash items:
Depreciation & Amortization 11,355 4,279 7,076 165.4%
Pension Expense 1,779 1682 97 58%
Unrealized GainslLosses 42,897 {17 676) 60,573 -342.7%
Net Change in:
Accounts Receivable {9,418) 1778 {11,196) -629.7%
Inventory & Other Assets {19,061) 6,695 (25756)  -384.7%
Accounts Payable & Other Liabilities 7,734 8,443 (709) -8.4%
Net Cash Flow from Operations {15,192) 25,287 (40,479)  -160.1%
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Acquisition of PP&E 9,639 19,874 (10,235) -51.5%
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Trustee Held Assets 547 28,855 (28,308) -98.1%
(Increase)/Decrease in Deferred Expenses (65,800} (57,372) {8,428) 14.7%
(Additions to)/ Draws from Capital Resere 62,652 {17,781) 80,433 452 4%
Pension Contributions : . - " v
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activiies 7,038 (26,424) 33,462 -126.6%
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from LT Debt 0 0 - nia
Payments on LT Debt (1,173) (911) (262) 28.8%
Debtissuance Costs - - - nia
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (1,173) (911) (262) 28.8%
NetInc/(Dec) in Cash & Investments (9,327) {2,048) {7,279) 355.4%
Cash & Investments Beginning {July 1) 19,601 10,669
Cash & Investments Ending (Sep 30) 10,274 8,621

Unaudiled interim statements - prior periods may have been restated for comparison purposes
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SAFETY NET STATEMENT

While Elmhurst Memorial Hospital and its parent Elmhurst Memorial Healthcare
serve as safety net providers for the residents of eastern DuPage and western Cook
Counties, the proposed discontinuation of services on the hospital’s Berteau Campus will
not have any material impact on the provision of essential safety net services. Elmhurst
Memorial Hospital is not the sole area provider of either of the inpatient services to be
discontinued, and as discussed in ATTACHMENT 10C, there are 50 other providers of
acute mental illness services and 338 other providers of long-term care services located

within 45 minutes of the hospital’s Berteau Campus.

The emergency department currently in operation on the Berteau Campus 1s
classified as a “stand-by” emergency department, receives very few patients, and is not a
destination of area EMS transport systems. Alternatively, the hospital operates a
“comprehensive” emergency department on its new campus, located 3.14 miles from the

Berteau Campus.

Upon the discontinuation, the outpatient oncology, physical and occupational
therapy, outpatient behavioral health, immediate care, imaging, and occupational health
programs located on the Berteau Campus will be immediately reintroduced by Elmhurst

Memorial Healthcare.
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o

Last, it is not anticipated that the proposed discontinuation will have any impact
on other safety net providers in the area, due to the excess capacity/low utilization rates

identified by a variety of area providers in their IDPH Profiles.
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12 | Purpose of the Project

13 | Alternatives to the Project

14 | Size of the Project

15 | Project Service Utilization

16 | Unfinished or Shell Space

17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space
18 | Master Design Project

19 | Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions

Service Specific:

20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU

21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation

22 | Acute Mental liness

23 | Neonatal Intensive Care

24 | Open Heart Surgery

25 | Cardiac Catheterization

26 | In-Center Hemaodialysis

27 | Nen-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery

28 | General Long Term Care

29 | Specialized Long Term Care

30 | Selected Organ Transplantation

31 | Kidney Transplantation

32 | Subacute Care Hospital Model

33 | Post Surgical Recovery Care Center

34 | Children's Community-Based Health Care Center
35 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
36 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital

37 | Clinical Service Areas Cther than Categories of Service
38 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services

Financial and Economic Feasibility:
39 | Availability of Funds 84-130
40 | Financial Waiver

41 | Financial Viability

42 | Economic Feasibility
43 | Safety Net Impact Stalement 131-132
44 | Charity Care Information 24-25




